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4 
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6 
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8 	 PETITIONER 
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18 
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21 
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7 ON BEHALF OF THE RESPONDENTS: 
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25 
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3 

Thereupon, the following proceedings were 

2 	held: 

3 	 MR. TOPPING: My name is Alvin 

4 	Topping, I live in Rem bert, South Carolina, 

5 	and I participate in the hunter/jumper 

6 	discipline. I will be in the Chair for 

7 	today's hearing. 

8 	 The Hearing Committee is a national 

9 	and volunteer committee of the Federation 

10 	which presently has 20 members who come from 

11 	across the country and are representative of 

12 	the many breeds and disciplines embraced by 

13 	the Federation. We are all involved in and 

14 	are familiar with the sport and the rules. 

15 	The Federation's Bylaws require a quorum of 

16 	at least three Hearing Committee members to 

17 	conduct hearings, and today we have a quorum 

18 	In attendance. 

19 	 I assure you that the Committee 

20 	members hold the matters which come before us 

21 	as confidential. And now I will ask the 

22 	other members of the panel to introduce 

23 	themselves and tell their places of residence 

24 	and breed or discipline affiliation. 

25 	 MS. CRONAN: MaryAnne Cronan, 

4 
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1 Louisville, Kentucky, Kentucky Horse Park 
2 Commission, American Saddlebred. 

	

3 	 MR. WILLIAMS: George Williams, 
4 Wellington, Florida, dressage. 

	

5 	 MR. MORONEY: Bill Moroney, 
6 Lexington, Kentucky, Hunter Jumper. 

	

7 	 MR. TOPPING: Thank you. Would 
8 the parties to this matter please state their 
9 names for the record? We will start over 

10 here. 

	

11 	MR. FOREMAN: Alan Foreman, I am 
12 counsel for Federation Drugs and Medications 
13 Program. 

	

14 	 MR. LOMANAGINO: Tom Lomangino, 
15 Director of Drug Testing and Research Lab, 
16 United States Equestrian Federation. 

	

17 	 MR. MAYLIN: George Maylin, 
18 Consultant, Drug Testing and Research Lab, 
19 United States Equestrian Federation. 

	

20 	 MR. SCHUMACHER: Stephen 
21 Schumacher, Director of Drugs and Medications 
22 Program. 

	

23 	 MS. NELSON: Krysia Carmel Nelson 
24 on behalf of Brigid Colvin. 

	

25 	 MS. COLVIN: Brigid Colvin. 
5 

MR. TURNER: Joel Turner, 
2 representing Steven Rivetts and Betsee 
3 Parker. 

	

4 	 MR. RIVETTS: I'm Steven Rivetts, 
5 Wellington, Florida, and I'm also a licensed 

	

6 	official hunter jumper. 

	

7 	 MR. TOPPING: Thank you. 

	

8 	 We understand that the parties to 
9 this matter were given prior notice of the 

10 identity of the Panel members and that no 

	

11 	objections were raised against any of the 
12 Panel members who are here to sit and decide 
13 on this matter. If that is not your 
14 understanding, now is the time for you to 
15 raise any objection or concern you may have 
16 with the Panel. Thank you. 

	

17 	 We note from the absence of any 
18 objection, that this panel is acceptable to 
19 the participants. I want to emphasize the 

	

20 	importance of the parties presenting all 
21 their evidence and making all their arguments 
22 to the committee today. The ruling to be 
23 made by this panel will be final. Rehearings 
24 are only granted when a party can show that 
25 there are new facts not discoverable by due 

6 

Page 5 to 8 of 108 
1 diligence prior to the hearing, and this 
2 occurs rarely. So please present you 
3 evidence and your arguments to the fullest 
4 extent and the sitting panel members will 
5 give careful consideration to all of the 
6 testimony in the case today. 

	

7 
	

I will now introduce others who 
8 will be in attendance for this hearing. On 
9 the far left of the room is the court 

10 reporter, Diana Loeb. To the left of me is 
11 Daniel Danford, the committee's counsel. On 
12 Mr. Danford's left is Emily Pratt, who is the 
13 committee's secretary. On Mrs. Pratt's left 
14 Is Julie Bernier from the Regulation 
15 Department. Together they act as staff for 
16 the committee and assist the committee in its 
17 work. 

	

18 
	

As counsel, Mr. Danford will assist 
19 in conducting the hearing and making rulings 
20 for the panel as to the admissibility of 
21 evidence and the like. He will now describe 
22 to you the law that governs. 

	

23 
	

MR. DANFORD: The United States 
24 Equestrian Federation is a New York 
25 non-profit corporation. Its rules specify 

7  
1 that New York law governs the interpretation 
2 and application of the rules in this hearing. 
3 This is not judicial proceeding, such as you 
4 would find in a court of law, but this Is 
5 akin to an administrative hearing held in New 
6 York law. And it gives the panel much more 
7 latitude in how it runs the hearing. A 
8 common example is it may chose to allow 
9 hearsay evidence. So if it did so, it would 

10 give that less weight than firsthand 
11 testimony. 

	

12 
	

Under the Federation rules, the 
13 party bringing the charge or the protest 
14 bears the burden of proof, and they will put 
15 on their witnesses first. All witnesses will 
16 step forward into the chair in front of me, 
17 will be sworn under oath by the court 
18 reporter and will testify under oath. There 
19 will be a full opportunity for cross 
20 examination and redirect as needed. 

	

21 
	

At the conclusion of the each 
22 witness, the panel may ask questions as well. 
23 I would caution the parties not to read too 
24 much into questions asked by panel members; 
25 questions can be asked for a variety of 

8 

k 
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Page 9 to 12 of 108 
reasons and don't necessarily show how that 
given panel member is leaning. In that 
regard, the panel has not gotten together to 
deliberate this matter and will not do so 
until the close of proof today. 

	

6 
	

If at any point there are questions 

	

7 
	

objections to procedure or evidence and the 

	

8 
	

like, the panel will be happy to deal with 

	

9 
	

those. 	At this point if the court 

	

10 
	

reporter would swear in this panel. 
11 (The Hearing Committee Panel was placed under oath) 

	

12 
	

Are there any issues we need to 

	

13 
	

take up before we begin? 

	

14 
	

MR. FOREMAN: I can explain the 

	

15 
	

issues. 

	

16 
	

MR. TOPPING: Do we have any 

	

17 
	

stipulations? 

	

18 
	

MR. FOREMAN: We do, Mr. Chairman. 

	

19 
	

We accept all issues except for the 

	

20 
	

determination as to who is the trainer or the 

	

21 
	

trainers are under the Federation rules of 

	

22 
	

the horse in this case. So I am going to do 

	

23 
	

a very brief presentation, because it's all 

	

24 
	

set forth in the record and we can then get 

	

25 
	

to the true issues in this case. 
9 

veterinarian that the horse's jugular veins 

	

2 	were compromised from previous drug tests, so 

	

3 	Dr. Connie Brown who was the testing 

	

4 	veterinarian was not sure what to do. And 

	

5 	Dr. Warner from the Hager Clinic was nearby 

	

6 	and she asked if she knew how to do the test 

	

7 	when the jugular was compromised. She said, 

	

8 	yes, collect from the venous sinus. So 

	

9 	Dr. Warner drew the blood from the venus 

	

10 	sinus instead of the jugular and she taught 

	

11 	Dr. Brown how to do it by the way. 

	

12 	 So the blood was collected and the 

	

13 	horse was assigned sample identification 

	

14 	17189. Blcod was collected, not urine, and 

	

15 	the, blood was sent to the laboratory. 

	

16 	And then the next day the horse competed in 

	

17 	the championship. The horse finished third 

	

18 	and was tested again and the testing 

	

19 	technician put the same information on card. 

	

20 	Brigid Colvin was the source of information 

	

21 	on the first one and the second day it was 

	

22 	Steven Rivetts, 

	

23 	 So blood was drawn from the horse 

	

24 	and both samples went to the laboratory at 

	

25 	the same time. They were all delivered -- 
11 

So, obviously, in this case we are 

	

2 	dealing with a horse by the name of Inclusive 

	

3 	who competed on August the 15th, 2014 at the 

	

4 	2014 USHJA Hunter Derby Championship, and 

	

5 	Inclusive on the 15th of August competed in 

	

6 	the Classic Round and won under entry number 

	

7. 	-- 647, excuse me. The entry card shows for 

	

8 	Inclusive that Steven Rivetts was the 

	

9 	trainer. 

	

10 	 The horse was selected for a drug 

	

11 	select and won the class was selected for 

	

12 	drug testing technician Michael LaCourse who 

	

13 	asked Brigid Colvin who .was with the horse -- 

	

14 	who was the trainer of the horse, and she 

	

15 	told him that she was the trainer. There was 

	

16 	a conversation that occurred, but the 

	

17 	affidavit reflects, because we asked the 

	

18 	question why is her name on the testing card, 

	

19 	and he stated because she told me she was the 

	

20 	trainer, so that's why Brigid Colvin's name 

	

21 	is on the card. That is the reason she was 

	

22 	on the card. But we have a different name as 

	

23 	the trainer on the entry form. 

	

24 	 So the horse was selected for 

	

25 	testing. Mr. Rivetts advised the testing 
10 

because Connie Brown lives in Lexington, the 

	

2 	samples were delivered by hand. The routine 

	

3 	testing was done and testing of the first 

	

4 	test A17819, tested for GABA at the levels 

	

5 	120.7, 109.0 and 137.8. 

	

6 	 I am sure you are aware that GABA 

	

7 	is a forbidden substance under the United 

	

8 	States Equestrian Federation rules because it 

	

9 	is a drug that naturally occurs in the horse 

	

10 	and we have been prosecuting cases where we 

	

11 	believe tht GABA In access of normal 

	

12 	concentration is an indication that GABA has 

	

13 	been introduced into the horse. 

	

14 	 You may know from previous cases, 

	

15 	the Federation did two separate population 

	

16 	studies, one was by Mr. Lomangino using 

	

17 	technology by the Federation, and he 

	

18 	determined that the normal GABA level was 62 

	

19 	-- parts per nanogram. 

	

20 	 Dr. Maylin did a separate study and 

	

21 	in his study he determined using liquid 

	

22 	chromatography tandem-mass spectrometer, his 

	

23 	study recommended a. level of 190 parts per 

	

24 	billion. So, confronted with two numbers 

	

25 	historically, the Federation in the early 
12 
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1 	cases has been prosecuting cases in excess of 

	

2 	190 parts per billion. That Is something we 

	

3 	have elected to do. In the meantime, there 

	

4 	have been additional population studies of 

	

5 	another 300 horses. The normal study, the 

	

6 	average of GAM was 42 parts per billion is 

	

7 	the normal level. In this case, based on the 

	

8 	Federation testing where our base using the 

	

9 	chromatography tandem-mass spectrometer 

	

10 	reflects 62 the normal, the GABA level for 

	

11 	Inclusive was 190. 

	

12 	 Now that we are able to get control 

	

13 	sample from the horse to determine normal 

	

14 	concentration, we determined that this horse 

	

15 	had been administered GABA. We don't know 

	

16 	who did it. All we know is we believe that 

	

17 	that horse competed with an excess level of 

	

18 	GABA in its system. So as a result, when we 

	

19 	got these reports, an investigation was 

	

20 	conducted by Dr. Schumacher. He retrieved the 

	

21 	original sample card first, which had a high 

	

22 	number on the 15th of August, and this is the 

	

23 	card and you have it in your records, that 

	

24 	shows that the owner is Betsee Parker and the 

	

25 	trainer was listed by the drug tester as 
13 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

insures to us that we don't need to charge 
the person on the sample card. We always 
list the trainer during the hearing process 
to determine if there is one trainer or more 
than one trainer. You cannot have a series 
trainers. So it ferrets out exactly who the 
trainer 

'Jo that is -- that's the 
Federation's case. And if we call witnesses, 
that is what we would show. I don't think we 
need to show why we regulate GABA because 
it's a welfare issue that we are all 
concerned about. The Federation has 
obviously treated this as one of its highest 
priorities. 

MR. DANFORD: Thank you. 
Ms. Nelson, we will start with you. 

MS. NELSON: In the interest of 
time, I am going to keep it super brief. 
Unfortunately, my client's time here with us 
today is limited by the delay and the fact 
that her minor daughter is alone in a hotel 
room waiting or her in order for them to 
catch a flight. 

MR. DANFORD: What is your time -- 
15 

MS. NELSON: The cab is coming out 
at 4:45 in order to get her on the last 
flight. So we -- if we need to take her 
testimony out of order, we have stipulated to 
take her first and we will try to keep it as 
brief and allow the hearing committee as much 
time as possible to ask whatever questions it 
feels are necessary to fill in the blanks 
that it might have. 

MR. TURNER: I so stipulate. 
MR. DANFORD: Call your witness. 
MS. NELSON: I call Brigid Colvin. 
THE COURT REPORTER: Do you swear 

or affirm that the testimony you are about to 
give, is the truth, the whole truth and 
nothing but the truth? 

MS. COLVIN: I do. 
DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. NELSON: 
Q Brigid, you are the mother of 111111Colvin? 
A Yes. 
Q Also known as II 
A Yes. 
Q How old is Mow? 
A She's 17. 

 

 

 

  

  

	

1 	Brigid Colvin. 

	

2 	 And this card also describes the 

	

3 	problem that Dr. Brown had in collecting the 

	

4 	blood and that she had asked Dr. Warner to 

	

5 	help. That was on -- that was August the 

	

6 	15th. The second card you have is from an 

	

7 	affidavit from Mr. Lomagino, which is A14959. 

	

8 	This is from the second day, the one which we 

	

9 	obtained blood test. The normal GABA level 

	

10 	was 19. 

	

11 	 Now understand that this is not a 

	

12 	positive test. It's value is that we got 

	

13 	another blood sample, a blood sample that 

	

14 	shows a level of 19 which we believe is the 

	

15 	normal level. And there is no explanation 

	

16 	other than the introduction or GABA into 

	

17 	Inclusive on the 15th being somewhere in the 

	

18 	neighborhood of 10 -- when you average out 

	

19 	the number. So for that reason we brought 

	

20 	charges. 

	

21 	 We brought charges against 

	

22 	Mr. Rivetts because we always charge the 

	

23 	person who is listed as the trainer on the 

	

24 	entry form and we always charge the person 

	

25 	unless there is a plausible explanation that 
14 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
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1 
	

Q When did -- when did 111start riding for Scott 

	

2 
	

Stewart? 

3 A When she was 7. 

4 Q Was she that same age when she started riding 

	

5 
	

ponies for. Dr. Parker? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q Last year at this time she was still riding with 

	

8 
	

Scott Stewart and Ken Berkley? 

9 A Yeah. 

10 Q And she and Ken had a falling out -- 

11 A There was a falling out after Lake Placid. 

12 Q You need to let me finish my -- 

13 A Sorry. 

14 Q That's what prompted Dr. Parker to take the horses 

	

15 
	

that she moved out of Scott's care? 

16 A I don't know the real story because I was never 

	

17 
	

told. I was in France when I got a text. 

	

18 
	

Q But it was after the falling out that this 

	

19 
	

happened -- 

20 A Yes. 

	

21 
	

Q And you were -- you were told to stay away -- 

22 A Yep. 

23 Q Who told you that? 

24 A Okay. So vaguely Steve told me when I got back 

	

25 
	

from Europe that a lot had gone on. Karen told me 

17- 

	

1 	Nothing:was said. But he told me I was not allowed 

	

2 	to go in the office, not allowed to touch the 

	

3 	horses and I was not allowed near the animals. 

	

4 	Q .Did Dr. Parker say anything specific to you? 

5 A No. 

	

6 	Q So how did this work? 

7 A Doctor Parker said to me that there was going to 

	

8 	be changes. We don't know which way we are going 

	

9 	to do it, whether we're going to make you the 

	

10 	trainer. Nothing was said. 

	

11 	Q Were you told that you would be listed as trainer 

	

12 	at Derby Finals't 

13 A No. 

	

14 	Q Who did you understand was going to be trainer? 

15 A Steve was always the trainer for the horses in his 

	

16 	care. 

	

17 	Q Did you go to office to confirm that? 

18 A No. I was not allowed in the office. 

19 Q Okay. What was the atmosphere between you and 

	

20 	Steve and Dr. Parker? 

	

21 	A Awkward, hostile. Here you are at a place that 

	

22 	everyone hates your guts and,  everyone thinks you 

	

23 	are doing things. It was stupid. You were there 

	

24 	and they were using you for your child because she 

	

25 	rides well and that's all they were doing. 

18 

	

1 	in Europe that it involved some changes that 

	

2 	happened and she didn't really know why...  

	

3 	Q Let me stop you for a second. Karen Is a friend 

	

4 	of yours? 

5 A Yes. She owns a jumper that rides. Something 

	

6 	had happened because Taltalked to Ken and after 

	

7 	that they did not want maw ride the horse and 

	

8 	I was not allowed back to the farm. That's all 

	

9 	heard. 

	

10 	Q And was there subsequently a conversation that you 

	

11 	had with Dr. Parker? 

12 A So I did not speak with Dr. Parker until Derby 

	

13 	Finals. I spoke with Steve Rivetts beforehand and 

	

14 	I was told not to touch the horses and not to go 

	

15 	to the barn with the horses due to what Scott told 

	

16 	Dr. Parker. 

	

17 	Q And what did Dr. Parker tell you at Derby Finals? 

18 A That due to what Scott was saying of what I did 

	

19 	over nine years that I was not allowed to touch 

	

20 	the horses and that maybe she is going to regroup 

	

21 	on the way she is going to do things. Nothing was 

	

22 	set in stone at the Derby Finals. Nothing was 

	

23 	said from her. Steve had mentioned to me that she 

	

24 	wanted me to be a trainer. I said, what do you 

	

25 	mean? Is she hiring me? Nothing was said. 

18 

	

1 	Q How did that make you feel like? 

	

2 	A Like shit. Like I feel right now. She's still 

	

3 	doing it. 

	

4 	Q Did you comply with their instructions to stay 

	

5 	away? 

6 A Absolutely. Otherwise, they were going to kick 

	

7 	her off the horses. I have -- I have done so much 

	

8 	for them and people know what I have .done for her. 

	

9 	Q On the day of the Derby Finals you've had a 

	

10 	chance to review the schedule that we had 

	

11 	prepared? 

12 A So basically I am not allowed In the barn, not 

	

13 	allowed -- if I:would go in the barn, one of Mr. 

	

14 	Rivetts' group or someone that he hired, would 

	

15 	escort me near her trunk if I- dared go close. But 

	

16 	basically I would just do laundry. I dropped 11111 

	

17 	off and did laundry. You-knoW, stupid things. Or 

	

18 	I would go and sit and watch. There was that one 

	

19 	morning when we went to the stable, and Betsee to 

	

20 	my face was so nice, but behind my back, she was 

	

21 	stabbing me in the back. 

	

22 	Q When the horse was selected for testing, did you 

	

23 	have a conversation with -- 

24 A Yeah. First of all, we were ecstatic. I am 

	

25 	crying not because I was upset, but because I am 

20 
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1 	thrilled, because I thought we did it. Because 

	

2 	everyone wanted us to fail. The whole world was 

	

3 	against us to fail. So the horse was amazing and 

	

4 	so was Ta. So I was balling my eyes out. The 

	

5 	tester was a young, tall man, and I said give me a 

	

6 	minute because I was so excited. He and I walked 

	

7 	up -- long story short, he asked who was the 

	

8 	trainer. I told him about the story -- I will not 

	

9 	go on, but from Ken and the text from T. Then 

	

10 	I said, I don't know who the trainer is because at 

	

11 	this point it was up in the air. I said put me 

	

12 	down. He said are you sure you want me to do 

	

13 	that? I said put me down. Now I realize that was 

	

14 	the dumbest thing. I should have said parent or 

	

15 	coach. How are you supposed to know? And he was 

	

16 	really nice. He said he had followed el 

	

17 	career and the guy was really, really nice. The 

	

18 	moment the horse had got the ribbon, he gets 

	

19 	whisked away, you know. You can't touch the 

	

20 	horse. You can't do anything. You're treated 

	

21 	like you have the plague and this was just from 

	

22 	what someone was saying. It's not fair that you 

	

23 	put so much into it and -- 

	

24 	Q How long were you -- you said you told the tester 

	

25 	this story. How long would you say it took you to 

21 

	

1 	tell him the story? 

2 A Ten minutes. He was really nice. That guy was so 

	

3 	nice. 

	

4 	Q So at the point that you got to, I don't know, put 

	

5 	me down as the trainer, you had been talking to 

	

6 	him for quite some time? 

7 A Ten minutes, maybe. Werere waiting for the 

	

8 	results and he was, you know, we were waiting to 

	

9 	see if he was going to win. And I was like, put 

	

10 	me down because, I didn't know. We were just -- 

	

11 	we were underneath the tent. He was next to the 

	

12 	schooling ring. I was like, I guess, put me down. 

	

13 	He said are you sure? I didn't see any reason why 

	

14 	not. 

	

15 	Q Brigid, how long have you been Involved In the 

	

16 	horsing Industry? 

17 A Thirty-five years. 

	

18 	Q How about at this level? 

19 A About twenty-five years. 

20 Q And when you worked for Scott, how would you 

	

21 	describe your role? What was it that you did in 

	

22 	his operation? 

23 A At the beginning I was like, I would whistle. I 

	

24 	just was his right hand man. I would do whatever 

	

25 	he wanted me to do. 

22 
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1 	Q But it didn't start out that way when a was 

	

2 	seven? 

3 A No. At the beginning I had my own clients and I 

	

4 	was like a little B trainer. And he told me to 

	

5 	start -- start focusing on everything. We had a 

	

6 	good pony -- the pony -- a jumper. So Ken 

	

7 	insisted that I buy it, so with the left over 

	

8 	money I had to work at Rivers Edge to buy the 

	

9 	jumper. And it kept going after like. I worked 

	

10 	for them -- no salary. 

	

11 	Q So in terms of describing your role to the hearing 

	

12 	committee, you were not a trainer? 

13 A No. I was -- I did anything I could possibly do. 

	

14 	If they said put the pony in the ring, I put the 

	

15 	pony in the ring. Go whistle, I would whistle. If 

	

16 	Scott wanted a braid, I was braiding. If he 

	

17 	wanted me to ship, I would ship. I did whatever 

	

18 	Scott said. By most of the time I was there for 

	

19 	Scott to whisvie. That's all I did. Set jumps 

	

20 	and whistle. Of course, whenever TM- 

	

21 	Q You took orders? 

22 A Oh, my God, yeah. 

	

23 	Q Moving forward again to Derby Finals. Who would 

	

24 	you say was Ttralner at the Derby Finals? 

25 A Can I be gut honest? in I mean, like Steve 
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1 	was at the jumps, I was at the jumps. Andre, who 

	

2 	was the groom, was at the jumps. And laivould 

	

3 	tell us what to do. She's amazing. And I was 

	

4 	there to support her and say, yes, jump. I was 

	

5 	there to go to the ring and whistle and then Steve 

	

6 	was there toc. I mean, he was there to supervise, 

	

7 	to make sure the horse was -- 

8 Q So you were her mom? 

9 A Yeah. 

	

10 	Q And you were there for support and basically a 

	

11 	grounds person? 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q And Steve was there with the horse and the groom 

	

14 	was there whe ever it went? 

15 A Yes. 

	

16 	Q Did you have anything to do with the preparation 

	

17 	of the horse. 

18 A No, I was not allowed. I mentioned to Karen that 

	

19 	the horse looked too fresh. I was told by Steve 

	

20 	that it was not business, that I was not allowed, 

	

21 	that was not my job. Stay away from the horse. 

	

22 	It was not my job. No, no. It was put -- I was 

	

23 	put in my pla':e immediately. 

	

24 	 MS. NELSON: That's all the 

	

25 	questions I have. 
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1 	 MR. DANFORD: All right. 

	

2 	 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

C 3 BY MR. FOREMAN: 

) 4 Q Sorry. Just so I understand, when were you told 

	

5 	by. Steve Rlvetts and Betsee Parker that you were 

	

6 	not to have any contact with the horse? 

	

7 	A When 	andlil I came back from Europe. 

	

8 	Q What was the timeframe? 

	

9 	A Around ten days before the Derby Finals11111 and 

	

10 	I came back from Europe. We went to Rivers Edge 

	

11 	where I had to be escorted because when we got 

	

12 	there -- the whole truck and everything was 

	

13 	ransacked and he told me I was not allowed near 

	

14 	the horses. 

	

15 	Q When was that? 

16 A Ten days before the Derby Finals. Ten or 12 days. 

	

17 	Q Ten days before the Derby Finals, did you have any 

	

18 	contact with Inclusive? 

19 A No. 

	

20 	Q Did you have -- 

	

21 	A Other than seeing him ridden. I was able to walk 

	

22 	out to the ring. 

	

23 	Q Did you have any involvement at all with the 

	

24 	horse's care? 

25 A No. 

	

1 	A Yes. I was not privied to it, but I know it was 

	

2 	given. 

	

3 	Q Is it because you were in meetings that it was 

	

4 	discussed or you had seen It? 

5 A Yes. 

	

6 	Q You have seen It? 

	

7 	A I have seen the bottles. 

	

8 	Q Have you ever -- did you have access to the 

	

9 	bottles? 

	

10 	A I am sure I could have opened up the med trunk. 

	

11 	Q Did you have any bottles in your possession? 

12 A No. 

	

13 	Q. Old you have any syringes in your possession? 

14 A No. 

	

15 	Q You know it's injectable? 

16 A Carolina Gold? 

17 Q Yes. 

18 A Yes. 

	

19 	Q And -- but you, yourself, have not participated in 

	

20 	injecting -- 

	

21 	A No. My hand.s shake. If a horse was really sick, 

	

22 	like if a horse was in the process of dying, I 

	

23 	shake really bad. I guess I could .get a doctor. 

	

24 	I shake so I doh't like giving shots because I am 

	

25 	like this going in. It's hard for me. I wanted 
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Q Did you have any contact with the horse at that 

point other than going to watch the horse? 

A Never. I was not allowed to touch the horse in 

the barn. Grooms were on me like a hawk. If I 

gave a carrot, they would stare at me. 

Q Are you familiar with drug Carolina Gold? 

A Yes. 

Q How are you familiar with it? 

MS. NELSON: Is there a reason -- 

MR. FOREMAN: I think It's a 

routine question in this case. In any GABA 

case I would ask this question. It's not 

based on any knowledge. I am trying to get 

information. 

THE WITNESS: At Scott Stewart's 

barn. 

BY MR. FOREMAN: 

Q So they use Carolina Gold at Scott Stewart's barn? 

A Yes. 

Q How was it used? 

A Injected. 
Q When was it injected? 

A It was instructed the night before in the meeting 

when it was to be given. 

Q I assume it was on the way to the ring? 

26 

to go to vet school when I was young, but I shook 

so bad. But I was privied to the meetings and, 

yes, if there was a meeting about .a horse that had 

colic, I have had to hold the head to give it 

Banamine. That is why I was a whistler at the 

ring. It would be hard to run back and forth -- 
Q On August the 15th --

A Yes. 

Q -- what was the first contact that you had with 

Inclusive? 

A I sawillirunning up because they were late. 

Okay. I remember this specifically. 

Q Give me timeframe. I have your schedule here. 

A I would say 11:30ish. 

MR. DANFORD: What day? 

MR. FOREMAN: Fifteenth of August, 

BY MR. FOREMAN: 

Q My question was, at what time did you first have 

contact with the horse Inclusive. 

A Around 11 or 11:45 when they brought him up. He 

was late. She went running up the hill. I 

remember specifically because she was freaking 

out. And I was with Andre. They came walking down 

and she got up on the horse half way up the hill. 

Q Where were you? 
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1 A You know, when you walk up the ramp at the Rolex 

	

2 	ring there is a tent. The steward and I was right 

	

3 	there. 

	

4 	Q Prior to this time, is this when you arrived or 

	

5 	had you been there all day? 

6 A No. I did laundry. What else is a mother 

	

7 	supposed to do? Because when we went to have 

	

8 	breakfast, that is when Betsee said -- Steve 

	

9 	called TAWand asked her when she is going to 

	

10 	start on a diet. I am sure he will remember that. 

	

11 	lallooked at her and said, don't worry Betsee, I 

	

12 	got this. Because my daughter is not fat. She 

	

13 	picked up a piece of bacon and ate it right in 

	

14 	front of Betsee. I was floored that she had the 

	

15 	guts to do this. All of our jaws dropped. And 

	

16 	they left. I was pacing, because I was really 

	

17 	nervous. When I say I was pacing, I am ihe most 

	

18 	nervous mother. I think some people can attest to 

	

19 	that. And she at in point had been riding a couple 

	

20 	horses. I think she had ridden Inclusive already. 

	

21 	We went down to the end gate and Lance was there 

	

22 	and we watched some horses, watched the horse, I 

	

23 	talked with Andre and she walked to get back for 

	

24 	the horse to get in the ring. And that was the 

	

25 	biggest time -- then I here a rumor, it's 
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1 	speculation, that I was supposedly in the 

	

2 	schooling ring and I leaned in and gave him a 

	

3 	shot. How I could lean in? It's embarrassing. 

	

4 	First of all, there is a Steward right there. 

	

5 	It's so locked down. 

	

6 	Q So I guess on the morning of August 15 -- 

7 A Yes. 

	

8 	Q -- eight hours before the horse competed, the 

	

9 	horse was tested on the 15th at noon? 

10 A Yes. 

	

11 	Q So let's go back eight hours. Let's be generous 

	

12 	here. Did you have any contact with the horse? 

13 A No. 
14 Q Seven hours? 

15 A No. 

16 Q Six hours? 

17 A No. 

18 Q Five hours? 

19 A No. 

	

20 	Q Four hours? 

21 A No. 

22 Q Three hours? 

23 A No. 

24 Q Two hours? 

25 A No. 

30 

1 Q One hour? 

2 A No. 

	

3 	Q So your only connection to the horse that day was 

	

4 	yours first contact? 

5 A From the schooling ring with Andre, Steve and 

	

6 	George. 

7 Q All right. Did you watch the horse compete? 

8 A Yes, yes. I was hanging onto the pole. 

	

9 	Q And what happened after the horse finished? 

10 A I balled my eyes out and then eventually talked to 

	

11 	the drug tester. 

12 Q Did you go back to the testing room with the 

	

13 	horse? 

14 A No, I was not allowed. 

15 Q Who went? 

16 A Mr. Rivetts. I was not allowed back there. 

	

17 	Q Oh, all right. So at no time, either 24 hours, 48 

	

18 	hours, prior to this horse competing did you have 

	

19 	contact with the horse whatsoever? 

20 A Every time I put my foot in the barn a groom 

	

21 	followed me. If I went into my daughter's trunk, 

	

22 	groom followed me. They hired a new person to 

	

23 	followileas well, so she could not do it 

	

24 	anything with the horse as well. 

	

25 	Q Let me go back to the -- to the administration of 
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Carolina Gold in the barn where you were working 

	

2 	prior to competing, when would Carolina Gold be 

	

3 	administered to the horse, do you know? 

4 A It was supposed to -- supposed, because this was 

	

5 	the night before, to be given as the horse went up 

	

6 	to ring. 

7 Q Who was the person or persons who would administer 

	

8 	the Carolina sold to the horse on the way to the 

	

9 	ring? 

	

10 	 AS. NELSON: If you know. 

	

11 	BY MR. FOREMAN: 

	

12 	Q If you know? You don't have to mention a specific 

	

13 	name. Is It the groom? The trainer? 

14 A Four girls. 

	

15 	 MR. DANFORD: I'm sorry? 

	

16 	 THE WITNESS: Four girls. Four 

	

17 	 people. 

	

18 	BY MR. FOREMAN: 

19 Q And how would they get it? 

20 A I.M. 

	

21 	Q And do you know how much they would give? 

	

22 	A They would give between a half to 2 ccs. 

	

23 	Q Do you know if Carolina Gold had ever been 

	

24 	previously administered to Inclusive? 

25 A Never. He runs the jumps. That's his big -- his 
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major problem. When you get him quiet, he hits 

the jump. Usually, at like junior finals, he hit 

the rail because he was too quiet. So it does not 

work on him. 

Q Do you know who accompanied Inclusive to the ring 

In the championship? 

A I don't remember. 

Q Don't look. Based on your own knowledge. 

A George was his groom. 

Q But you were not — you didn't walk up --

A No, I couldn't. 

Q So you have no knowledge of what happened from the 

time the horse left the barn? 

A No. 

Q Up until the time it came to the ring? 

A No. 

Q I will ask you this because you are under oath. 

Have you ever administered Carolina Gold to a 

horse? 

A No. 

Q Did you administer Carolina Gold to Inclusive on 

August 15th? 

A No. 
MR. FOREMAN: No further questions. 

MS. NELSON: Based on the meetings? 

	

2 	 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

	

3 	BY MR. TURNER: 

	

4 	Q Earlier in your testimony you were talking about 

	

5 	how .you were made aware of the change of venue for 

	

6 	the horses? 

	

7 	A (Witness nodded affirmatively.) 

	

8 	Q And you were asked if you had any conversations 

	

9 	with Ms. Parker or Dr. Parker about It before the 

	

10 	Hunter Derby Championship and your answer was no? 

11 A Yes. 

	

12 	Q Do you know that she submitted an affidavit? 

13 A Yes. And she made me cry. 

	

14 	Q Are you saying that Dr. Parker has misrepresented 

	

15 	the facts of this case in her affidavit, 

	

16 	particularly when she says that you agreed to be 

	

17 	responsible for taking the gelding from the barn 

	

18 	to the schooling ring and then Into the judge's 

	

19 	ring. From the time the gelding left the care of 

	

20 	my barn manager, Steve Rivetts, until Inclusive 

	

21 	performed In the United States Equestrian Jumper 

	

22 	on August 14th at the Kentucky Horse Barn -- 

	

23 	 MS. NELSON: Objection.. What is 

	

24 	your question? 

	

25 	BY MR. TURNER: 
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1 	 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

2 BY MR. TURNER: 

	

3 	Q You were talking about that Inclusive was a very 

	

4 	quiet horse and he hits rails. 

5 A No. When we get him quiet. 

	

6 	Q How do you get him quiet? 

7 A Lunges. 

	

8 	Q Then you followed up and said it doesn't work on 

	

9 	him? 

10 A Uh-huh. 

	

11 	Q Are you referring to Carolina Gold? 

12 A Uh-huh. 

	

13 	Q How do you know? 

	

14 	A Because they tried it. 

	

15 	Q Who is they? 

16 A When he was owned by Scott Stewart. 

	

17 	Q Did you see it administered? 

	

18 	A I know it was given. 

19 Q How do you know? 

20 A Because I know. 

	

21 	Q But you never gave it? 

22 A No. 

	

23 	Q But you are certain that It was given by four 

	

24 	girls, one-half to 2 ccs? 

25 A Absolutely. 
34 

	

1 	Q The question is -- I asked -- the question was -- 

	

2 	are you prepay d to state that that statement 

	

3 	misstates the truth about what happened that day? 

	

4 	A It's not true. 

	

5 	Q So you didn't have an understanding with Dr. 

	

6 	Betsee Parker to do what -- so Is it your position 

	

7 	that Dr. Betsee Parker in her affidavit did not 

	

8 	have an understanding with you to take the horse 

	

9 	to the show ring as stated In her affidavit? 

	

10 	A So, in the horse world, Dr. Parker pays 'a lot of 

	

11 	money to her grooms who bring horses all beautiful 

	

12 	to the show ring, to give lab leg up, to wipes 

	

13 	her boot down. In that affidavit it says -- 

	

14 	claims that I take them from the barn, take the 

	

15 	horse and take control, walk them to ring, put my 

	

16 	daughter on. That is false. I have never -- 

	

17 	Q Did you have any conversation with Dr. Parker 

	

18 	about your taking responsibility for these horses 

	

19 	as trainer? 

20 A No. 

	

21 	Q You gave that information to the technician that 

	

22 	they just put me down. Then my understanding is, 

	

23 	and I am going to ask you one question about this, 

	

24 	but subsequent to that time, Isn't it true that 

	

25 	you have been listed as the trainer at a number of 
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1 	different shows? 

2 A Prior? 

	

3 	Q Isn't it true, subsequent to this Hunter Derby, 

	

4 	after -- 

5 A After this horse show it was my understanding-- 

	

6 	Q Even the next day -- let me finish. 

7 A After this horse show, it was my understanding if 

	

8 	I did not put my name as trainer, she was pulling 

	

9 	my daughter off these horses. Finally when I 

	

10 	heard there was a positive on Inclusive, I said to 

	

11 	Steve when he said sign the entry for Web, I said 

	

12 	are you crazy. You are putting me in a coffin. I 

	

13 	am not going to put my name. And when you have 

	

14 	all the care of these horses, I have no idea what 

	

15 	they are getting, so I refused to sign them. So I 

	

16 	signed them for indoor, but then I was told I was 

	

17 	not allowed in the office. My daughter says, mom, 

	

18 	please, they are taking care of these other 

	

19 	horses. You have no idea what they are medicating 

	

20 	them with and you are signing your name. I said 

	

21 	Tjou are right. And she gave me permission. 

	

22 	She said nothing is more important than you. My 

	

23 	daughter is a good girl. She's a good rider and 

	

24 	she is going to get other rides. And it was that 

	

25 	important, I guess. I thought it is more 
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referring to --that Scott Stewart told her that 

-- told Betsee Parker that you were medicating 

everything? 

MS. NELSON: I don't understand 

what timeframe you are asking. 

BY MR. TURNER: 

Q I am asking for the timeframe. She just said Dr. 

Parker had a conversation with her after Inclusive 

tested positive In which she said Scott Stewart 

said that she, Brigid Colvin, had been medicating 

horses. When did that conversation take place? 

MS. NELSON: Which conversation? 

'HE WITNESS: What conversation? 

BY MR. TURNER: 

Q The conversation that Scott Stewart may have said 

about your contact? 

A November. After November. Then she asked me if I 

medicated Pad Trick (phonetic) for the McClane 

Finals. Then E hung up the phone and said I'm 

done. 

Q It's your position that you have never medicated 

any horse? 

A With Carolina Gold? 

Q Mr. Foreman asked If you have --

A No, I don't medicate. 
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important to keep her on riding and sign my life 

	

2 	away. Not that I am getting paid for signing my 

	

3 	life away. I thought it was -- I believed -- Dr. 

	

4 	Betsee Parker is great. She is -- she's amazing. 

	

5 	But at the same time, why should I be the guinea 

	

6 	pig or why should I sign. So after indoors when I 

	

7 	am not allowed in the office, I was like forget 

	

8 	this. He gets a positive and they want me to sign 

	

9 	again at Web. 

	

10 	Q Did Dr. Parker express her concern that you might 

	

11 	be medicating horses? 

	

12 	A Dr. Parker told me Scott Stewart told her that 

	

13 	would be medicating these horses. Do you truly 

	

14 	believe I would subject myself -- 

	

15 	 MR. TURNER: I am not answering the 

	

16 	questions here. You are answering the 

	

17 	questions. 

18 BY MR. TURNER: 

	

19 	Q I understand from what you just said to me that 

	

20 	there was a conversation with Dr. Parker about 

	

21 	this? 

22 A When Inclusive had the positive, Doctor Parker 

	

23 	told me that Scott Stewart told her that 

	

24 	medicate everything. 

25 Q When did -- what was the timeframe that she was 
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1 
	

Q But then you said you gave Banamine to horses and 

	

2 
	

you get the shakes when you give injections. So 

	

3 
	

that is not consistent with not medicating a 

	

4 
	

horse. 

	

5 
	

MS. NELSON: That is misstating her 

	

6 
	

testimony. 

7 BY MR. TURNER: 

8 Q Did you say that you medicated a horse with 

	

9 
	

Banamine? 

10 A I said if a horse was dying and I had to, I would 

	

11 
	

give a shot of Banamine. As a good person to say 

	

12 
	

that. 

13 Q So that was a hypothetical. You have never given 

	

14 
	

Banamine to a horse? 

15 A I gave a shot of Banamine to a horse that had 

	

16 
	

colic I would say a year and a half ago. And the 

	

17 
	

horse went into surgery and I actually saved the 

	

18 
	

horse, thank God, because he was lived. 

19 Q That is the only time that you have medicated a 

	

20 
	

horse? 

21 A With a shot? 

22 Q Yes. 

23 A Yes. I'm sorry. I can't give you more. 

	

24 
	

MR. TURNER: How many -- strike 

	

25 
	

that. I have no further questions. 
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MR. MORONEY: Are the grooms that 

2 -- this George groom or any of the other 
3 grooms in Dr. Parker's barn, did they work 
4 for Scott Stewart prior to working for Dr. 
5 Parker? 

	

6 	THE WITNESS: I don't have 
7 knowledge. The one groom, George, he was a 
8 little sketchy, so I don't know. 

	

9 	 MR. MORONEY: Did they work on 
10 horses when they lived at Scott Stewart's? 

	

11 	 THE WITNESS: No. Scott's grooms 
12 were always there. 

	

13 	 MR. MORONEY: Thank you. 

	

14 	 MR. DANFORD: Any further 
15 questions? 

	

16 	 MR. MORONEY: One more. 	The 
17 horses, when they were stabled during the 
18 week of the Hunter Derby, what was the 
19 proximity of their stable to Scott Stewart's 
20 horses? 

	

21 	 THE WITNESS: We were near the 
22 Rolex and he was Barn 17, maybe down the 
23 hill. He didn't want to be close. It was 
24 just very tense. 

	

25 	 MR. MORONEY: So Doctor Parker's 
41 

1 long story. 

	

2 	 MR. DANFORD: You had a falling out 
3 at some point with Dr. Parker? 

	

4 	 THE WITNESS: No, no. Ken Berkley 
5 wanted to do something to Tel Worse. 
6 is very empathetic and did not want it. Ken 
7 Berkley is Scott's partner. Gwent to 
8 Young Riders and the horse went off the first 
9 cAkand 1B celled Ken. Ken did not answer. 

	

10 	tent a text. Scott called me and said 
11 you take Mout of Young Riders because of 
12 the text. I stand behind my daughter because 
13 she loved the horse and what she said was 
14 proper. 

	

15 	So basically what it was, was a 
16 young girl that )elieved her horse did not 
17 need to have wiat happened and that's a long 
18 story. 

	

19 	 Then we went to Europe and Ken was 
20 in Europe. He left us in Europe. When we 
21 came back from Europe two weeks later, all 
22 the horses were scattered. And my one jumper 
23 that was hurt at the time was at Rivers Edge. 
24 My trailer with ransacked and Scott had given 
25 permission for a groom take pictures. It was 
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1 were by the Rolex stadium? 

	

2 
	

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

	

3 
	

MR. MORONEY: At the present, at 
4 the present, who walks the horses up to the 
5 ring? 

	

6 
	

THE WITNESS: Mr. Rivetts' groom, 
7 George. 

	

8 
	

MR. TOPPING: And George works for 
9 who? 

	

10 
	

THE WITNESS: Mr. Rivetts and 
11 Dr. Parker. He is no longer with them 
12 because of hearsay. I was told he stole a 
13 metal from Grimensky (phonetic) Farm, so he 
14 was fired from the spot and removed. So he 
15 was not great -- 

	

16 
	

MR. TOPPING: And Dr. Parker fired 
17 him? 

	

18 
	

THE WITNESS: Mr. Rivetts and 
19 Grimensky asked that he be removed that day. 

	

20 
	

MR. DANFORD: I am trying to get a 
21 handle on the timeframe. So at some point 
22 you had a falling out with Scott Stewart? 

	

23 
	

THE WITNESS: I never had a falling 
24 out with Scott Stewart. I don't know. 

	

25 
	

MS. NELSON: It might become a very 
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.1 	terrible. It was like nine years of life -- 

	

2 	 MR. DANFORD: During this time 
3 period, was Scott actually the trainer of 
4 Inclusive? 

	

5 	THE WITNESS: Yes. 

	

6 	 MR. DANFORD: He trained the horse 
7 for Dr. Parker? 

	

8 	 THE WITNESS: Either Scott or 
9 Mr. Rivetts. 

	

10 	 MR. DANFORD: Does Mr. Rivetts work 

	

11 	in the same bar i? 

	

12 	 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rivetts works for 

	

13 	Dr. Parker. Basically flip-flops on horses. 

	

14 	So if it's in Rivetts care, it just 
15 flip-flops. It's always been like that since 
16 Mr. Rivetts worked there. 

	

17 	 MR. DANFORD: So when you came back 
18 from Europe, Mr. Rivetts said you were not to 
19 touch the horse? 

	

20 	 THE WITNESS: Yeah. Like, he 
21 didn't know either what had happened. He was 
22 very honest. He had no idea. 

	

23 	MR. DANFORD: He was just reporting 
24 what Dr. Parker had told him? 

	

25 	THE WITNESS: Yeah. 
44 
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MR. DANFORD: So did you ever 
2 understand why Dr. Parker thought you had to 
3 be -- 

	

4 	 THE WITNESS: Still to this day I 
5 have not spoken to Scott and I have no idea. 

	

6 	 MR. WILLIAMS: Without the long 
7 drawn out story, when your daughter was at 
8 Young Riders-- 

	

9 	THE WITNESS: Yes. 

	

10 	 MR. WILLIAMS: -- was she asked to 
11 medicate the horse? 

	

12 	 THE WITNESS: No, no. This had 
13 nothing to do with medication. This had to 
14 do with preparation of the horse. 

	

15 	 MR. WILLIAMS: Training. 

	

16 	 THE WITNESS: Basically was getting 
17 the jump, a jump straight up. And it was 
18 embarrassing and she felt the preparation was 
19 not proper and Ken and her butted heads, I 
20 guess. 

	

21 	 MR. WILLIAMS: So they had a 
22 disagreement? 

	

23 	 THE WITNESS: Yes. She's 16 year 
24 old and empathetic -- 

	

25 	 MR. DANFORD: Before you went to 
45 
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MR. MORONEY: Then 12 is the 

presentation and afterwards the tester leaves 
the schooling ring with Inclusive. Where was 
Steve Rivetts as the -- during this entire 
time period from that moment the horse was 
coming up the hill until he left with the 
tester? 

THE WITNESS: So when Tillipent up 
to the hill, that was before the class. So 
Tglibecause the horse was late for the 
class -- 

MR. MORONEY: Okay. Wait. 
WITNESS: This -- I am going 

here,.See because I was down at the hill 
pacing. Then I went up to hill to where the 
tent was, but -- 

MR. MORONEY: When did you first 
see Mr. Rivetts? 

THE WITNESS: At the jump. 
MR. MORONEY: What happened from 

that point on? 
THE WITNESS: He was at the jump 

with us. Then he went down this way and I 
went this way. I was here with the tester. I 
don't know where Steve went. Honestly, I 
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1 don't know where he went because I was crying 
2 my eyes out. 

	

3 	MR. MORONEY: Did you see him walk 
4 down with the horse? 

	

5 	THE WITNESS: When we went -- 

	

6 	MR. MORONEY: I am curious. From 
7 the schooling area, who accompanied that 
8 horse to the ring from schooling area down to 
9 the gate? 

	

10 	THE WITNESS: All of us. 

	

11 	 MR. MORONEY: Thank you. 
12 George was cleaning him and I was patting 
13 11111head saying I love you and I was 
14 crying because I am so emotional. And Steve 
15 was there. All of us. And Andre too. 
16 Then I go to the side where Molly Bailey is, 
17 because that is my lucky spot. It's Derby 
18 Finals and -- 

	

19 	MR. WILLIAMS: Who is Andre? 

	

20 	THE WITNESS: Andre Dignelli. And 

	

21 	he just -- he wasn't hired at that point for 
22 the hunters, b cause he was doing the -- he 
23 felt it was his ..upportive part because 
24 everybody was bashing me which because of their 
25 comments. 
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1 	Europe, I mean, you have kind of described 
2 yourself as a gopher, doing everything at 
3 Scott's stable. So you were not a trainer of 
4 the horse at that point? 

	

5 	THE WITNESS: No. It's funny, 
6 because Scott had broken in his collar bone 
7 and Betsee called me and I was like telling 
8 them what to buy, what kind of chocolate. We 
9 were best friends. I think you can attest to 

10 that. We were really good friends. 

	

11 	And it just -- it wasn't, you know, 
12 he did make me take 30 horses to Lake Placid, 
13 so TOcould get points on them. 

	

14 	MR. DANFORD: Any further 
15 questions? 

	

16 	 MR. MORONEY: Did Tevery 
17 medicate any horse? 

	

18 	 THE WITNESS: No. 

	

19 	 MR. MORONEY: The second question 
20 is, according to the timeline here that you 
21 have, you say around 10:15 you spoke to 
22 Nancy, Steve Rivetts and Betsee Parker and 
23 socialized with them. 

	

24 	 THE WITNESS: That is one the way 
25 down. 

46 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 

7 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13' 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

www.ratemyhorsepro.com

Rate
MyH

orse
PRO.co

m



given of Carolina Gold that, was given to 

horses under the care of Scott Stewart, was 

anywhere from one-half to 2 ccs? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 
MR. WILLIAMS: Have they changed 

the dosage of Carolina Gold that has been 

given to the horses? 

THE WITNESS: No. ,Remember at this 

point, now this is going back istt Fri July last 

year because I have not been there because of 

Europe. So I don't know as of now, but it 

depends on the horse. 
MR. WILLIAMS: So they didn't start 

at 1 cc, and try to tighten It down in the 

hopes of not being detected? 
THE WITNESS: When it was legal, 

they were getting 10/20 because it was legal 

at that point. But yes, yes, to answer your 

question. 
MR. WILLIAMS: Thank you. 

MR. TURNER: Could I ask a couple 

follow-up? 

day the 

25 	horse tested positive, do you remember what order 
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22 

23 BY MR, TURNER: 

24 Q That day, being the classic round day, the 
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MR. WILLIAMS: I am not familiar 

with the name. The second day -- 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

MR. WILLIAMS: -- this horse 
competed in the championship? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Were you with the 

horse that day at any time? 

THE WITNESS: That day the drug 

tester was there, the tall guy. 

MR. WILLIAMS: The testing people 

were there for quite some time? 

THE WITNESS: It was more lenient 

that day because they had the person sleeping 

with the horse. They had -- the drug tester 

was there, so that was a little bit easier. 

But that day I remember this distinctly that 

the awards took so long, and the horse was in 

that ring for at least an hour waiting for 

awards. And I remember leaning on the fence 

going to Tathat it would be good if they 
would rather because they placed first, and 

second, and third and fourth were waiting for 

almost an hour to get their ribbons. So I 

know that Tagot off and Steve left with 
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drug tester. 

	

2 	 MR. WILLIAMS: I am talking now 

	

3 	before the horse competed. 

	

4 	 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

	

5 	 MR. WILLIAMS: There were drug 

	

6 	testers with that -- 

	

7 
	

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

	

8 
	

MR. WILLIAMS: How long? 

	

9 
	

THE WITNESS: Three or four hours. 

	

10 
	

MR. WILLIAMS: So this horse was 

	

11 
	

observed three or four hours prior to 

	

12 
	

competing? 

	

13 
	

THE WITNESS:.. Yes. 

	

14 
	

MR. WILLIAMS: Were you there at 

	

15 
	

this time? 

	

16 
	

THE WITNESS: Often times when we 

	

17 
	

get to stack tied everyone itras.  them. 

	

18 
	

MR. WILLIAMS: On the second card 

	

19 
	

it says the source of information that you 

	

20 
	

were the trainer was from Steve Rivetts. Did 

	

21 
	

you have a conversation -- 

	

22 
	

THE WITNESS: I never spoke to no 

	

23 
	

one. 

	

24 
	

MR. WILLIAMS: Final question is, 

	

25 
	

you -- you indicate that the dosages that are 
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he was in was?.  
A He was tenth from the bottom. 

Q So in other words, closest to the end of class. 

How close to the end of class? 

A Ten from the bottom. 

Q Explain what that mean? 

A Ten trips to the end if I remember. 

Q That's all foreign to me. There are ten horses 

that follow? 

A Yeah. 

MS. CRONAN: Ten more to go. 

BY MR. TURNER: 
Q Then the horse was whisked off immediately after 

he finished his round?.  
A No. I said, I cried, I then I went with the drug 

tester. That was a 10 to 12 minute trip. And 

• is doing about two minutes around. I am 
crying. ..I am with the guy going up to the top. I 

am telling him everything from Ken to the text to 

this a long story. And then she goes back and 

leads the horse and then the horse is whisked off 
after awards and they are In reverse order that 

they come into the ring. 
Q So he wasn't the last horse in the ring. 

All right. Now, you mentioned that you knew that 
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1 	you were not welcome in the barn? 

2 A Yes. 

	

3 	Q Yet on several occasions you said every time you 

	

4 	went to the barn I was followed around? 

5 A Weil -- 

	

6 	Q Why did go to the barn? 

	

7 	A I had to go in the trunk and get her stock tied. 

	

8 	My daughter was running around. I had to get her 

	

9 	stirrups. 

	

10 	Q So on that day, August 15, you actually were in 

	

11 	the barn several times? 

	

12 	A No. One time. 

	

13 	Q What time was that? 

	

14 	A After the class. 

	

15 	Q Okay. You never went in before the class? 

	

16 	A No, no. And then they had the trunk in that barn 

	

17 	and she had a trunk in -- she had a trunk at 

	

18 	Heritage Farms. It was at the stable. Remember 

	

19 	now, she had four horses, five horses there to 

	

20 	ride. There was not just that one horse. 

	

21 	Q I am just concerned about this one horse. 

22 A Okay. 

	

23 	 MR. DANFORD: Any further questions 

	

24 	for this witness? Okay. Who's your next 

	

25 	witness? 
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1 	Scott Stewart? 

	

2 	A The horses were to be out before she came back 

	

3 	from Europe, out of Scott Stewart's barn before 

	

4 	she came back from Europe. He no longer wanted 

	

5 	them on their property. So I spoke with Ken 

	

6 	Berkley, Scott Stewart's partner and flew from New 

	

7 	Jersey and got the stalls there. And Dr. Betsee 

Parker informed me that dlitvould still be riding 

	

9 	hot and I would be managing the horse and Brigid 

	

10 	would be the trainer. 

	

11 	Q What is your understanding of the reason why 

	

12 	Dr. Parker had to remove these horses from Scott 

	

13 	Stewart's barn and relocate them and put them in 

	

14 	your care? 

	

15 	A My understanding is a trust issue between Brigid, 

	

16 	Scott and Ken. 

	

17 	Q Can you give the hearing committee a little more 

	

18 	background? 

	

19 	A When I say "trust," I think like she had said 

	

20 	before, she did do a lot of concern. And Scott, 

	

21 	as far as helping managing the farm, but I think 

	

22 	the other side of the picture she was a little bit 

	

23 	heavy with the medication from what I understand. 

	

24 	I was not there. I did not see it, but I have 

	

25 	heard this. 

55 
MR. FOREMAN: Steve Rivetts. 

	

2 	 THE COURT REPORTER: Do you swear 

	

3 	or affirm that the testimony you are about to 

	

4 	give, is the truth, the whole truth and 

	

5 	 nothing but the truth? 

	

6 	 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

	

7 	 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

8 BY MR. TURNER: 

	

9 	Q Mr. Rivetts, will you state your name and just 

	

10 	state briefly to the hearing committee what your 

	

11 	background is in the horse business? 

	

12 	A I've been in the horse business for at least 25 or 

	

13 	30 years. I had my own program in New England and 

	

14 	then I moved to New Jersey. Then I got an 

	

15 	opportunity to work with Dr. Parker and I was 

	

16 	employed with her for about three years. I was 

	

17 	hired as her barn manager and I was a licensed 

	

18 	official with the United States Equestrian 

	

19 	Federation, U.S.E.F. Judge before, hunter, and 

	

20 	never violated anything. This is all new to me. 

	

21 	I never heard of gabapentin or Carolina Gold. 

	

22 	It's all new to me. 

	

23 	Q Explain to the hearing committee what Doctor 

	

24 	Parker, as your employer, told you to do with 

	

25 	these horses that were coming to your barn from 
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1 	Q So you understand that the root of the problem was 

	

2 	Scott Stewart was concerned about her medicating 

	

3 	his horses unbeknownst to him? 

4 A Yes. 

	

5 	Q Did you have a conversation with Scott Stewart 

	

6 	about that? 

7 A Yes. 

	

8 	Q Did he confirm that? 

9 A Yes. 

	

10 	Q Did he get specific with you about his concern 

	

11 	about Ms. Colvin? 

	

12 	A He said be very careful. If she is going to be 

	

13 	with the horse in your care, do not allow her in 

	

14 	the barn; to do the best you can to keep her away 

	

15 	from the horses. 

	

16 	Q Did you discuss that admonition with Doctor 

	

17 	Parked, 

	

18 	A Oh, yes. She totally agreed. 

	

19 	Q Can you tell me when you had a conversation with 

	

20 	Dr. Parker? 

	

21 	A Probably the first week of July. 

	

22 	Q Okay. So that was six weeks before this 

	

23 	particular show on August 15? 

	

24 	A Yes. We had left the first week of July. 

	

25 	Q So in July, pre umably, the Colvins were in 
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1 	Europe? 

2 A Yes. 

C 

3 Q They came back ten days before the show. Is that 

	

' 4 	all consistent with your. recollection? 

5 A Yes, yes. 

	

6 	Q So you had the horses for a few weeks before .they 

	

7 	got back? 

8 A Yes. My job as a barn manager, I also exercise 

	

9 	them and keep them in condition until Tallshows 

	

10 	up to ride in a show. 

	

11 	Q How many horses did you have in the barn at that 

	

12 	time? 

13 A Six. 

	

14 	Q Were they all horses owned bring Dr. Parker? 

15 A Yes. 

16 Q How many grooms did you have? 

17 A Three. 

	

18 	Q There was something about this groom that was 

	

19 	fired and Ms. Colvin testified that he was 

	

20 	terminated for stealing. can you tell the hearing 

	

21 	committee what happened there? 

	

22 	A The real story is, yes, he was fired for stealing. 

	

23 	What had happened was, he did not go to one of the 

	

24 	horse shows. He was left at home. And one of the 

	

25 	grooms that worked for him, he and him did not get 
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1 	did she know to put your name down? 

2 A We had moved the horses. Brigid was in Europe and 

	

3 	Marylou did all the entry in advance for the show. 

	

4 	So she did them in advance. Now the closing of 

	

5 	each show has a closing date. 

	

6 	Q So -- I understand from reading Dr. Parker's 

	

7 	affidavit, she understood that there was an 

	

8 	arrangement for .  Brigid Colvin to act as trainer of 

	

9 	the horse? 

10 A Yes. 

	

11 	Q What was your understanding. 

12 A Act as trainer, yes. 

	

13 	Q Did you talk to Dr. Parker about that in advance 

	

14 	of the show? 

15 A She actually gave me the information that this was 

	

16 	happening. Dr. Parker told me Brigid is going to 

	

17 	be the trainer. She is to sign as trainer. 

	

18 	Q So you have reviewed her affidavit? 

19 A Uh-huh. 

	

20 	Q Is that consistent with what your recollection was 

	

21 	of your conversations with Dr. Parker? 

22 A Absolutely, yes. 

	

23 	Q So under these circumstances, tell the hearing 

	

24 	committee, you know, what steps did you take to 

	

25 	try to protect yourself from possible tampering 
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1 	a long, so he had taken some metals. Whether he 

	

2 	stole them, I don't know, off a desk, and put them 

	

3 	in my groom's car and took a picture and showed it 

	

4 	to Dr. Parker and she did not want her on the 

	

5 	property. That's all I know about that. But 

	

6 	George had work for Betsee Parker for six years 

	

7 	and never had a problem. I was able -- 

	

8 	Q It had nothing to do with medication? 

9 A No. 

	

10 	Q Now, you have seen an entry blank here today 

	

11 	before this particular show. How did your name 

	

12 	get on the entry blank? 

13 A My name got on the entry blank because the 

	

14 	secretary for Rivers Edge signed my name. I was 

	

15 	never supposed to be put down as trainer. I was 

	

16 	the barn manager. 

	

17 	Q So that's not your signature? 

18 A That's not my signature. 

	

19 	Q Do you remember the name of the woman who .did 

	

20 	that? Was that Mary Lucas? Who does she work 

	

21 	for? 

22 A Rivers Edge. 

23 Q Owned by? 

24 A Scott Stewart. 

	

25 	Q So this was -- this was a directive -- well, how 
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with the horses? 

2 A well, we had people stay overnight. I hired 

	

3 	people to stay in the tent to watch the horses so 

	

4 	they could sleep and be able to work the next day 

	

5 	and hopefully that was supposed to work. And also 

	

6 	going back to zhe trainer thing, the first day of 

	

7 	the horse shoW, I went to the office to have my 

	

8 	name changed -- taken off as trainer. I spoke to 

	

9 	the secretary directly. She was busy, filing 

	

10 	entries and she made a note of it and stuck it to 

	

11 	her computer that it was to be changed. 

12 Q Was her name Angela Pritchard? 

13 A Yes. She said she would get to it after putting 

	

14 	all the entries in the computer. 

	

15 	Q Did you have an occasion to check back with her 

	

16 	later on? 

17 A I went in later on in the show and it was already 

	

18 	processed and it was too late. 

	

19 	Q That's what she told you? 

20 A Yeah. 

	

21 	Q Let's focus on August 15, What's your 

	

22 	understanding of what the routine was going to be 

	

23 	that day of the Classic Round? 

24 A The routine is pretty much not the same, but it 

	

25 	has a board of the times where the horse are to be 
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1 	lunged, ridden, bathed, second time ridden. We 

	

2 	follow the schedule. I think that day was 

	

3 	probably an eight o'clock ride and then lunch and 

	

4 	then another ride around 1.0ish. Then they would 

	

5 	get his legs washed, if he had wet socks, 

	

6 	whatever, had to be according to the time 

	

7 	schedule. 

	

8 	Q When the horse was going to be taken to the ring, 

	

9 	whose responsibility was that going to be? 4! 
10 A That was the groom. The groom would bring the 

	

11 	horse to the end of the tent, give as leg up 

	

12 	and '111111iould ride the horse to the ring with her 

	

13 	mother walking to the ring with her. 

	

14 	Q Did you observe -- on that particular day, did you 

	

15 	observe that happening? 
16 A Yes. 

	

17 	Q Can you explain to the hearing committee where you 

	

18 	were and how long it took you to get the warm up 

	

19 	and whether what you heard Ms. Colvin testify 

	

20 	about was consistent with what you remember? 

	

21 	A Okay. It was time to get to the ring. The groom 

	

22 	brought the horse out and gave l& leg up and 

	

23 	her mother started to walk down. I got in the 

	

24 	golf cart and went to the warm up ring. I am 

	

25 	thinking this is taking too long. I text my groom 
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1 	and he said they are on their way. I asked what 

	

2 	took so long and I got no answer. By that time, 

	

3 	like I had stated earlier, there were only ten 

	

4 	out, so she had to get going, get the horse warmed 

	

5 	up and get in the class. 
6 Q How much time do you think elapsed between the 

	

7 	time Brigid Colvin and 	Colvin took the horse, 

	

8 	until the time they got to the warm up ring? 
9 A Seven or eight minutes. 

	

10 	Q Did that seem a like a short or long time? 
11 A Long. 

	

12 	Q Was she out of your sight during that time period; 

	

13 	she, being Brigid Colvin and NI 
14 A They got on, started to walk and I drove ahead of 

	

15 	them to the ring. 

	

16 	Q And was that -- was that consistent with your 

	

17 	understanding with Dr. Parker on how the horse was 

	

18 	to be handled? 

19 A Yes. 

	

20 	Q Was that the routine that was followed thereafter? 
21 A Pretty much. It's 50/50. Sometimes 'Would 

	

22 	get on at the barn, or -- especially that show, 

	

23 	she was not riding as many horses. At that show 

	

24 	she was only ride one horse at the Derby. But at 

	

25 	other shows, she is running from ring to ring, so 
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1 	we bring the horse to her at the ring. 

	

2 	Q So Ms. Colvin testified earlier today that her 

	

3 	daughter was getting on several horses that day? 

4 A In the morning she rode some other horses. We 

	

5 	call them hunters, and she had a string of 

	

6 	equestrian horses and a string of jumpers. So she 

	

7 	would be at my barn and ride some and then go to 

	

8 	the Heritage barn and ride some. 

	

9 	Q But she was only showing this horse? 

10 A Yes. 

	

11 	Q Were there any others with 4/1 Colvin and Brigid 

	

12 	Colvin at the barn? 

13 A The groom. 
14 Q That was George? 

15 A George. 

	

16 	Q All right. You said earlier in your testimony 

	

17 	that you did not know what GABA was. Do you 

	

18 	administer medications by injection to your own 

	

19 	horses on the day that they are showing? 

20 A You actually can't. It's a rule. 

	

21 	Q I understand. I want to rule it out. You didn't 

	

22 	know what GABA was prior to the positive finding 

	

23 	in the report that identified you as the trainer. 

	

24 	A I never heard of it. As a matter of fact, that 

	

25 	was the first time that I heard of it. I called 
63 

my vet and asked what it was. 
2 Q Who was your vet? 

3 A Doctor David 

4 Q What did he tell you? 

5 A He told me what it was. 
6 Q Then what was said? 

7 A I said, Carolina Gold, I said, wow, we are in 

	

8 	trouble. 

	

9 	Q How did you k low you were In trouble? 

	

10 	A Because I ref saved a letter from the United States 

	

11 	Equestrian F$ ideration. 

	

12 	Q You had hears' of Carolina Gold, but you've never 

	

13 	heard of GABA? 

14 A No. I had not heard about either. 

	

15 	Q So this is the $64,000 question. How do you think 

	

16 	this horse got the GABA in its system? 

17 A Brigid Colvin, I imagine. 
18 Q And what is that based on? 

19 A Again, I did not see it. I have not seen it. But 

	

20 	I have been ;mid not to trust her; be very 

	

21 	careful. She has injected horses before with it. 

	

22 	And she says she is not able to because she has 

	

23 	shaky hands, but she can give an I.V. shot. And 

	

24 	she has taught the groom, I mean, the exercise 

	

25 	girls how to Ove shots. 
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1 Q How do you know that? 1 Q Yes. 

2 A They told me. 2 A No, no. 
3 MR. TURNER: I don't have. anything 3 Q How about prior to that? 

' 	4 further. 4 A Prior to that, that was Dr. Betsee Parker -- was 

5 MR. DANFORD: Cross-examination? 5 Scott's mare. 

6 MR. FOREMAN: Just a few questions. 6 Q Okay. When is the first time that you saw Brigid 

7 CROSS-EXAMINATION 7 Colvin at the show? Is it when the horse got to 

8 BY MR. FOREMAN: 8 the schooling ring with the groom and you drove 

9 Q I am a little bit unclear about your answer to 9 off in the golf cart? 

10 your counsel's question. 	Prior to getting the 10 A Let, me start the situation. Solt's time for us 

11 letter from us, you did not know what GABA was; is 11 to show. And my groom George walks the horse out 

12 that correct? 12 of the tent, gives *Navin, the rider, a leg 

13 A Correct. 13 up.11111and the horse Inclusive and Brigid walk 

14 Q When you heard Carolina Gold, why did you say 14 to the warm up ring. The horse warms up. George 

15 "wow?" 15 wipes the horse's mouth and lilMoots. Myself, 

16 A Because -- well, then I called Scott. I said 16 Brigid, George and Andre are there. There is a 

17 Scott -- I called Scott. 17 little ramp to get into the Rolex ring and 

18 Q So Scott Stewart is the one that told you? 18 Inclusive goes into the ring and does its class. 

19 A (Witness nods affirmatively.) 19 Q Were you all together? 

20 Q This groom, George, who does he work for? 20 A Yes..  

21 A Now? 21 Q In the -- how much time did It take from the time 

22 Q Well, at the time that this was all occurring, 22 that Brigid Colvin met you at the school ring? 

23 George was the groom? 23 A Like I said earlier, seven to eight minutes. 

24 A Doctor Betsee Parker. 24 .Q In the -- in the time before that, in all the time..  

25 Q The horse went from barn to the schooling ring. 25 before that, who was with the horse? 
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1 I'm not familiar with this location, so I cannot 1 A My other groom. 

2 picture it. Is the schooling ring near the 2 Q Who were your other grooms? 

3 showing ring? 3 A Santana and Marco. 

4 A Yes. 4 Q And they work for you? 

5 Q And the horse is with the groom? 5 A Yes. And Dr. Parker. 

6 A Uh-huh. George is there all the time. 6 .Q ..And Dr. Parker? 

7 Q At some time Brigid Colvin meets the groom with 7 A Yes. 

8 the daughter and they go,to the schooling ring to 8 Q And they are also responsible for other horses? 

9 the show ring or only the show ring. 9 A Correct. 

10 A Schooling ring also. 10 Q They are in a tent? Is that where the horses 

11 Q So George, who was the groom at the time, who was 11 stay? 

12 he employed by? 12 A Yes. 

13 A Doctor Betsee Parker. 13 Q Are there other grooms there? Are other trainers 

14 Q And so he was with the horse-at the same time and 14 with horses then e? 

15 he was responsible for the care of the horse. He 15 A There is probably a thousand, 1500 horses. 

16 was the one that was responsible for the horse? 16 Q They all kind of had interaction with each other 

17 A Correct. 17 to watch the other horses, so there Is a lot of 

18 Q Did he work for anyone else beside Dr. Betsee 18 activity going on? 

19 Parker? 19 A We did put barriers up to keep people out. I had 

20 A No. 20 instructions to make sure people were not 

21 Q Did he groom any horses for Scott Stewart? 21 wandering through. I had people stay at night 

22 A No. 	 , 	. 22 with the horses. 

23 Q Did Scott Stewart have any connection at all to 23 Q You were kind of the supervisor? 

24 Inclusive or anything going on here? 24 A Yes. 

25 A That day? 25 Q You oversee this operation? 
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1 A Yes. 

2 Q Okay. There seems to be this underlying theme 

	

3 	that whoever signs the entry form is the trainer. 

	

4 	Do you understand the rule doesn't read that -- 

	

5 	the rule doesn't says obviously, the person who 

	

6 	signs entry form is the trainer. But you 

	

7 	understand that the rule goes beyond that and it 

	

8 	defines the trainer as the person who is 

	

9 	responsible for the care, custody and control of 

	

10 	the horse. So whether you tell the office or sign 

	

11 	the form or not, you can still be held responsible 

	

12 	for the care of that horse If It's under the care 

	

13 	of your operation? 

14 A Okay. 

	

15 	Q So while Betsee Parker said that Brigid Colvin was 

	

16 	the trainer, was Brigid Colvin in any way 

	

17 	responsible for the care, custody or control of 

	

18 	Inclusive up until to the time she met the horse 

	

19 	at the ring? 

	

20 	A Yeah. When she would ride it in the morning. 

	

21 	Q Not et Brigid. 

	

22 	A Brigid would be there, yeah. 

23 Q Okay. 

24 A She would watch her ride or watch her lunge the 

	

25 	other horses too. 

69 
Q So -- and that's what I was -- on the morning of 

	

2 	the 15th, which seems that that's the day that 

	

3 	Inclusive had a high GABA level, was Brigid Colvin 

	

4 	there all morning? 

	

5 	A I don't know exactly the hour she was there. I am 

	

6 	going to state that she did come in the barn more 

	

7 	than one time, unannounced, and was asked to leave 

and did she stay longer than she was supposed to 

	

9 	stay. Whether she was going in the trunk, I don't 

	

10 	know either. 

	

11 	Q Okay. Now, you went -- you accompanied the horse 

	

12 	to the testing stall for the drug test both days? 

13 A Yes. 

	

14 	Q Why did you accompany the horse instead of Brigid 

	

15 	Colvin? 

	

16 	A I mean, that was my job. I am responsible. I 

	

17 	manage the horses. I felt like I had nothing to 

	

18 	fear to be honest with you. Take the horse to be 

	

19 	tested; he has been tested before. 

	

20 	 MR. FOREMAN: Okay. No further 

	

21 	 question. 

	

22 	 MR. DANFORD: Counsel, any 

	

23 
	

questions? 

	

24 
	

MR. FOREMAN: I have one more. I'm 

	

25 	sorry. 
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FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION 

2 BY MR. FOREMAN: 

	

3 	Q On the sample card the second day there were drug 

	

4 	testers with the horse for quite a period of time 

	

5 	prior to competing? 

6 A Yeah. They brought one in the morning and stayed 

	

7 	there all day until the class start. 

	

8 	Q So the horse was observed all the time? 

9 A Yes. 

	

10 	Q So according to the sample card, It pasted at 5:08 

	

11 	p.m, two different pastes at 5:58. Three 

	

12 	different pastes at 7:25 p.m. and three different 

	

13 	pastes at 8:10. What were those pastes? 

	

14 	A It was lactasn. That's oral not Injectable. 

	

15 	Q Oral paste for :what?  

	

16 	A The Lactonase is a natural from the vet. It's 

	

17 	more of a muscle relaxer. And the same thing with 

	

18 	the Perfect Prep. It's all herbal natural. 

	

19 	Q Do you give that to all of your horses prior to 

	

20 	competing? 

21 A Yes. 

	

22 	Q What's the punxise behind giving it to them? 

	

23 	A Pretty much when the horses came in I asked. 

	

24 	Q I'm sorry? 

	

25 	A Asked what the routine was. How they were 
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medicated. What they got. Horses, we have older 

	

2 	horses, they do get a tab of bute. If they're 

	

3 	older and they've jumped a lot jumps and that was 

	

4 	on sheet as far as medication as to what they get. 

	

5 	Q I mean, is that'something that you -- is that a 

	

6 	protocol that you started? 

	

7 	A No. I asked the people who are at Rivers Edge, 

	

8 	Scott, Ken, and his barn help, what were these 

	

9 	horses getting prior to them coming to me so we 

	

10 	could keep them on it. 

	

11 	 MR. FOREMAN: Nothing further. 

	

12 	 RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION 

13 BY MR. TURNER: 

	

14 	Q Mr. Rivetts, you mentioned that you are a licensed 

	

15 	official. Are you a Big R judge or a little R 

	

16 	judge? 

	

17 	A Large R. 

	

18 	Q And how long have you been a judge? Because to 

	

19 	get a Big R, yon have to have been a Little R 

	

20 	first, right? 

	

21 	A Twenty, 25 years. 

	

22 	Q In your capacity as a licensed official, do you 

	

23 	familiarize yourself with the rules of the 

	

24 	Federation? 

	

25 	A Absolutely, yes. 
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1 
2 3  

4 
5 
6 

7 

8 

Q And you have to attend training programs about 

medications -- lcations A 
Yes. 

 

Q -- and I am sure you get a lot of -- 

A Rule changes. 

Q You get a lot of thing from the USEF, e-mails, 

letters, that tell you about rules and changes in 

the rules? 

1 
2 

3 

4 
5 
6 
7 

8 

A Not to my knowledge. Someone else might have done 

it.  

Q Have you ever been put down for Dr. Parker's other 

horses? 

A The ponies In my care, yes. 

Q So you had -- when you said you had not been put 

down as a trainer, you were not put down as a 

trainer when they were in Scott's care? 

9 A Yeah. What I pretty much look at are the hunter 9 A Yes. 

10 rules and jumper rules. I know where you're 10 Q And so in your understanding was that when they 

11 going. I don't read the medication, because It's 11 came Into your care that you would not be the 

12 illegal. 12 trainer? 

13 Q But you probably get a fair amount of 13 A Let me -- it's -- what.e did is, Scott has his 

14 communication from the Federation? 14 own barn in Wellington. And Dr. Betsee Parker, 

15 A Yeah. 15 sometimes they are tied to each other. It's a 

16 Q 	Press release and such things? 16 long circuit. They would be done and they would 

17 A Yeah. Whatever comes, yeah. 17 come to Dr. Parker's farm under my care, pretty 

18 Q And you get pamphlets, you get the rule books and 18 much to be on vacation. So there would be no need 

19 things like that? 19 to be a trainer horse. Also, the horses that were 

20 A Yes. 20 at the barn, If it was full, .I would take the 

21 Q 	So it's your testimony that as licensed official, 21 ponies and he would send the rider -- obviously, 

22 you have never seen this pamphlet which is called 22 they are small ponies, to exercise the ponies, and 

23 The Guidelines for Drugs and Medications? 23 we would bring them to the horse show. 

24 A Yeah. Every time a horse gets drug tested, they 24 Q So, it's not -- 

25 have -- 25 A It's not like I had those horses in my care for 
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1 Q So you are familiar? 1 months and months and months. It would be at 

2 A I have not read through that one, but I have two 2 River Edge, it was a show for 8, 10 or. 12 weeks, 

3 of them. 3 then go Dr. Betsee Parker's barn for a rest.. And 

4 Q And if I might approach and show you these two 4 when they were asked to leave Rivers Edge, they 

5 documents? 	Do you have copies? 5 came to my full care. 

6 MS. NELSON: They are in the case 6 Q But in the three years that you've worked for Dr. 

7 file. 7 Parker, you have shown up as trainer, listed as 

8 THE WITNESS: I saw these, yes. 8 the trainer, for her horses? 

9 MR. FOREMAN: Here. It's P421 and 9 A No. Her ponies. 

10 P422, the press release. 10 Q For the ponies. Okay. And so -- 

11 THE WITNESS: Sorry. What Is the 11 A Again, I was listed as trainer. Not -- I was 

12 question? 12 never asked to be listed as the trainer. I found 

13 BY MR. TURNER: 13 out myself that I was listed as trainer. 

14 Q Did you ever see those press releases when they 14 Q For the ponies? 

15 came out? 15 A For the ponies. 

16 A No. No. 16 Q Okay. 

17 MS. NELSON: I will take those 17 A Again, going back to the secretary, she was -- she 

18 back. 18 would put my name as trainer because she did all 

19 THE WITNESS: Sorry. 19 the entries. 

20 CROSS-EXAMINATION 20 Q 	Okay. But again, the question is, you are not 

21 BY MS. NELSON: 21 saying you didn't show up in the capacity as 

22 Q Now, you testified that you had never -- you had 22 trainer for Dr. Parker's horses? 

23 never been put down as a trainer? 23 A No. 

24 A Not with these horses, never. 24 Q Only the ponies. You said that it was your 

25 Q Were you put -- 25 understanding that for the Derby, that Brigid was 
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1 	going to be listed as trainer? 

2 A Absolutely. 

	

3 	Q You also testified that on the first day you went 

	

4 	to the show office and asked that the entry be 

	

5 	changed? 

6 A Correct. 

	

7 	Q Why would you have asked for it to be changed if 

	

8 	you thought it was in Brigid's name? 

	

9 	A I was told it was in my name. I was told by Dr. 

	

10 	Parker make sure it's not in your name. So I went 

	

11 	to the office and it was in my name. Because she 

	

12 	had, a week prior, I had a conversation on the 

	

13 	phone with her that she is going to be down as 

	

14 	trainer for the rest of the shows. 

	

15 	Q And Dr. Parker told you -- Dr. Parker told -- who 

	

16 	did the entry? 

17 A Marylou. 

18 Q And -- 

19 A And we had found out that -- we were in Lake 

	

20 	Placid and I found out that I went down as the 

	

21 	trainer and that is why I went to the office. And 

	

22 	Dr. Parker, she called me and reminded me to go on 

	

23 	the first day, which I did do. 

	

24 	Q You said you hired people to stay overnight and to 

	

25 	guard the horses in shifts? 
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went ahead. 

	

2 	Q Why didn't you walk with them? 

	

3 	A I had a golf cart. It's true. I did a lot of 

	

4 	walking that day, so I was ready for the golf 

	

5 	cart. 

	

6 	Q Now, you testified that you medicated this horse 

with lactinate and Perfect Prep and you did that 

	

8 	based on past protocol from Scott Stewart's barn? 

9 A Correct. 

	

10 	Q Which was communicated to you by Scott Stewart? 

	

11 	A Uh-huh. And also the lactinate paste is made by 

	

12 	our veterinarian. 

	

13 	Q Did Brigid in any way participate in your decision 

	

14 	to give this horse lactinate or Perfect Prep? 

15 A She knew. I mean, she knew. Honestly, she knew 

	

16 	more of the horses' medications than I knew. 

	

17 	Q But when you took over the horses, you were 

	

18 	instructed not to listen to her? 

19 A I did. 

	

20 	Q So you didn't do that -- 

21 A No. 
22 Q -- because -- 

23 A No. 

	

24 	Q -- that's what you wanted to do? 

25 A Right. 
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1 A Correct. 

2 Q Those people were paid by whom? 

3 A Doctor Parker. 

	

4 	Q And to your knowledge, was Brigid paid by Dr. 

	

5 	Parker? 

6 A Not to my knowledge. 

7 Q And so -- 

8 A She was not on the payroll, but she did get tips. 

9 Q And you know this how? 

	

10 	A I have given the checks to her. 

	

11 	Q So you all were very concerned about Brigid being 

	

12 	near the horses based on what Scott had told you? 

13 A Correct. 

	

14 	Q And yet you left her -- it's your testimony that 

	

15 	you left her alone with the horse for 

	

16 	approximately 10 minutes to go from the barn to 

	

17 	the schooling area? 

18 A Seven to eight. Could be ten. Like I said, its 

	

19 	the tent, down the driveway, down the hill to the 

	

20 	warm up area. 

	

21 	Q So you have someone watching the horses around the 

	

22 	clock and also escorting her around the barn? 

23 A They were walking -- I looked behind me and they 

	

24 	were walking. I didn't drive the golf cart next 

	

25 	to the horse. It was in front of horse. So I 
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Alt. DANFORD: Is that it? 

	

2 	 MS. NELSON: I think so. 

	

3 	 ;IR. DANFORD: Does the panel have 

	

4 	any questions? 

	

5 	 MR. WILLIAMS: Yeah, I just have 

	

6 	some on this, because, obviously, I am 

	

7 	familiar with the show grounds. 	Where 

	

8 	was the tent exactly? Which tent was it? 

	

9 	 THE WITNESS: Okay. It's the one 

	

10 	by the warm up area, behind where they store 

	

11 	the jumps on top of the hill. 

	

12 	 'MR. WILLIAMS: By the big barn? 

	

13 	 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

	

14 	 MR. WILLIAMS: So on the far side 

	

15 	of the big barn? 

	

16 	 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

	

17 	 MR. WILLIAMS: So it's actually 

	

18 	down the hill; it's not up the hill? 

	

19 	 THE WITNESS: (Witness nods 

	

20 	affirmatively.) 

	

21 	 MR. WILLIAMS: Okay. And so the 

	

22 	daughter got on at the tent? 

	

23 	 THE WITNESS: At the tent. 

	

24 	 MR. WILLIAMS: And when you rode 

	

25 	your golf cart -- I assume it's the warm up 
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1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 

that's right in line with the Rolex stadium? 
THE WITNESS: Yes. 
MR. WILLIAMS: Did you immediately 

go to the warm up area or did you go to where 
you see up the hill? 

THE WITNESS: I went -- MR. 
WILLIAMS: You could see her? 

2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 

allegation that she was over-medicating 
horses, correct? 

THE WITNESS: Correct...  
MR. DANFORD: Now -- all right. 

The concern it sounds like to .me was the 
concern with giving too much of what was 
considered .a forbidden substance? 

8 THE WITNESS: (Witness nods 8 THE WITNESS: Yes. 
9 affirmatively.) 9 MR. DANFORD: So knowing all that, 

10 MR. DANFORD: How many days prior 10 Ms. Parker decided to make Ms. Colvin the 
11 to this testing did you actually have the 11 trainer of the horse? 
12 horse? 12. THE WITNESS: She did. Hoping that 
13 THE WITNESS: Couple of weeks. 13 would not happen. 
14 MR. DANFORD: Few weeks? Three 14 MR. DANFORD: And you, as having 
15 weeks? 15 custody and control of the horse, you allowed 
16 THE WITNESS: I don't know. 16 Ms. Colvin to take the horse unaccompanied by 
17 MR. DANFORD: During that time, the 17 anyone? 
18 horse was always stabled in your facility? 18 THE WITNESS: Again.-- 
19 THE WITNESS: Yeah. 19 MR. DANFORD: Just answer the 
20 MR. DANFORD: You did all the 20 question yes or no. 
21 feeding? 21 THE WITNESS: Yes. 
22 THE WITNESS: Yes. Myself. 22 MR. DANFORD: Okay. 
23 MR. DANFORD: You did all the 23 MR. WILLIAMS: I thought at one 
24 medication? 24 point you testried that George was walking 
25 THE WITNESS: Yes. And the vet. 25 the horse? 
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MR. DANFORD: And the vet. THE WITNESS: Yes. 

2 all of that was within your control? 2 MR. WILLIAMS: As a groom was with 
3 THE WITNESS: (Witness nods 3 her? 
4 affirmatively.) 4 THE WITNESS: That's correct. 
5 MR. DANFORD: Miss Colvin was not 5 MR. WILLIAMS: And that groom did 
6 allowed in your stabling area, correct? 6 not report to you that Ms. Colvin or anyone 
7 THE WITNESS: At home or show? 7 else administered medication? 
8 MR. DANFORD: At show. 8 THE WITNESS: Correct 
9 THE WITNESS: Correct. 9 MR. WILLIAMS: That groom was not 

10 MR. DANFORD: And, in fact, you 10 employed by Ms. Colvin? 
11 would have folks escort her out? 11 THE WITNESS: Correct. 
12 THE WITNESS: She did. But she 12 MR. WILLIAMS: Did any of the 
13 still came in. 13 grooms in the barn during that day report 
14 MR. DANFORD: Same thing at home? 14 that Ms. Colvin was with that horse alone? 
15 THE WITNESS: Same -- 15 THE WITNESS: They -- she did feed 
16 MR. DANFORD: No, no. I'm asking 16 him apples and carrots. 
17 you. Same situation? 17 MR. WILLIAMS: But none of them 
18 THE WITNESS: Yes. 18 reported that she had a needle and a syringe 
19 MR. DANFORD: And the reason she 19 and gave the horse an injection? 
20 was kept out of having any kind of direct 20 THE WITNESS: No. 
21 role with the horses is because of the 21 MR. WILLIAMS: And how did you feel 
22 alleged over medicating by her? 22 about Ms Colviln? We know what Miss Parker 
23 THE WITNESS: Yes. 23 said to you, bUt did -- 
24 MR. DANFORD: Okay. So, Ms. Parker 24 THE WITNESS: I was a wreck. I was 
25 knew about that, or at least of the 25 very nervous. 
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MR. WILLIAMS: And I am curious, 
2 who calls the shots in this operation? You 
3 seem to have the care, custody and control. 
4 But during this horse show Dr. Parker said I 
5 am going to make Brigid Colvin trainer, 
6 which, you know, let's her have access to 
7 this horse to some degree. Although it's your 
8 testimony she is not feeding it, giving the 
9 lactonase, giving it the paste at all the 

10 different times and all this kind of stuff, 
11 but there ends up being a big group of people 
12 surrounding this horse. Who determines when 
13 the horse is in your care and what medication 
14 that horse gets? Do you make that decision 
15 or does Dr. Parker? 
16 	 THE WITNESS: I do. 	Again, 
17 like I explained earlier, I got the 
18 medication list from Rivers Edge. 
19 	 MR. WILLIAMS: Has that list been 
20 divulged to Dr. Parker? 
21 	 THE WITNESS: Yes. 
22 	 MR. WILLIAMS: And does she agree? 
23 	 THE WITNESS: Yes. 
24 	 MR. WILLIAMS: Does she to sign off 
25 on any other medications that the horse gets 
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1 	if you want to give it any or if the vet 
2 wants to give it anything else? 

	

3 	 THE WITNESS: I would think, yeah, 
4 you have to file a medication report. 

	

5 	 MR. WILLIAMS: I am curious. Do 
6 you if the vet says I want to give this horse 
7 any other medication that is not on the list 
8 that you got, do you go to Dr. Parker first 
9 to get clearance about that medication to be 

10 given or-- 

	

11 	THE WITNESS: I have not been in 
12 that situation. 

	

13 	 MR. WILLIAMS: Sort of same 
14 question, but I want to ask it a different 
15 way. I am going to say name brands. But if 
16 you're feeding Purina Grain and you want to 
17 switch to Nutrina, would you have to have her 
18 okay? 

	

19 	 THE WITNESS: No. I'm responsible 
20 for grain, the hay, the vitamin supplements. 

	

21 	 MR. DANFORD: So the testimony I 
22 heard you say, is that your groom brought the 
23 horse out and helped up the rider and then 
24 the mother of the rider and the groom left to 
25 go to the warm up ring and you went to the 
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1 ring. 
2 	 THE WITNESS: Correct. 
3 	 MR. WILLIAMS: After the horse 
4 competed, MI6 took the horse away? 
5 	 THE WITNESS: The groom took the 
6 horse and we went to get pictures. 
7 	 MR. WILLIAMS: Then what happened? 
8 	 THE WITNESS: We went to the tent 
9 for the drug trust. 

10 	MR. WILLIAMS: Okay. And Ms. 
11 Colvin did not go with the horse, correct? 
12 	 THE WITNESS: No. 
13 	 MR. WILLIAMS: By that I mean 
14 Brigid Colvin. 
15 	 THE WITNESS: No. 
16 	 MR. WILLIAMS: And then the rest of 
17 the day, did Ms. Colvin have any contact with 
18 the horse? 
19 	 THE WITNESS: That horse? 
20 	 MR. WILLIAMS: Yes. 
21 	 THE WITNESS: No. 
22 	 MR. WILLIAMS: Okay. And that's 
23 typically what happens. 	So, basically 
24 she had the seven or eight minutes where she 
25 was walking with other two individuals in the 
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1 warm up ring. And other than that, you were 
2 there or one of your grooms were there the 
3 entire time? 
4 	 THE WITNESS: Yes. 
5 	 MR. WILLIAMS: Do you have any 
6 personal knowledge while you were associated 
7 with Dr. Parker in the three years or so that 
8 you have worked for her, when that horse was 
9 moved from Scott Stewart's farm, that that 

10 horse was getting Carolina Gold or a form of 
11 GABA at all? 
12 	 THE WITNESS: (Witness shakes head 
13 negatively.) 
14 	 MR. WILLIAMS: Did Scott ever tell 
15 you that that was part of the horse's 
16 regimen? 
17 	 THE WITNESS: No. 
18 	 MR. WILLIAMS: Have you ever seen 
19 Tolvin give an injection? 
20 	ANSWER: No. 
21 	 MR. WILLIAMS: Did the grooms ever 
22 talk about her giving an injection? 
23 	 THE WITNESS: No. 
24 	 MR. WILLIAMS: But they did, 
25 according to your testimony earlier, talk to 
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you about Brigid Colvin giving injections? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

MR. WILLIAMS: All right. 

MR. FOREMAN: Just two questions. 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION 
BY MR. FOREMAN: 
Q Have you seen the affidavit of Faith Fort --
A No. 
Q -- introduced in this case? 

A No. 
Q Do you know who she Is? 
A Yes. 
Q She is the stable manager? 

A Yes. 
Q She says in her affidavit that the horse Inclusive 

was ridden by T*Colvin and trained for the U.S. 

Hunter Derby in Lexington by her mother Brigid 

Colvin. Do you know what she means by trained? 

A Her mother would go'out and train her in the ring. 
Again, back to TO Tills a gifted rider. You 
don't train her. Her mother would set the jumps. 

Q Coach? 

A Coach. 
Q So when Faith Fort refers to train, she means 

coach? 
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1 	on the entry form? You were instructed by Dr. 

	

2 	Parker to get entry form for Inclusive to the 

	

3 	office, okay, sent in? 

4 A Yes. 

	

5 	Q You said you knew your name was on the entry form? 

	

6 	A Yes. I called. Marylou -- 

	

7 	Q She is the person in the office? 

	

8 	A She said she had already done the entry and I was 

	

9 	down as trainer. 

	

10 	Q Is there any reason she would have put Brigid 

	

11 	Colvin's name on there? 

	

12 	A By •the deadline all of this had happened. 

	

13 	Q On Friday -- she says in her Affidavit, on Friday, 

	

14 	August 15th, Steve Rivetts, Faith Fort and Nancy 

	

15 	Hall and I were together all day, and we, nor 

	

16 	anyone in my barn administered any medication to 

	

17 	Inclusive prior :o the Derby Finals. But there 

	

18 	were other people -- she doesn't mention the 

	

19 	grooms or George, but they were also present? 

20 A Correct. Yeah, they were working. 

	

21 	Q And then it says that on the morning of August 

	

22 	15th, I instructed Steve Rivetts to go to the 

	

23 	horse show office with Nancy Hall as a witness to 

	

24 	request that the entry clerk take his name off the 

	

25 	entry form. Who is Nancy Hall? 
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A Correct. 

	

2 	Q In the -- there is an affidavit from Dr. Parker in 

	

3 	this case and she said that she calls you her 

	

4 	employee. She doesn't refer to you as her 

	

5 	trainer, correct? 

6 A Correct. 

	

7 	Q So you are her employee. What does that mean? 

8 A I am the barn manager. 

	

9 	Q Okay. She then says that she instructed you to 

	

10 	get the entry blank for Inclusive sent in by the 

	

11 	deadline for entries? 
12 A Correct. 

	

13 	Q So you had to be aware at the time that your name 

	

14 	was on there; is that accurate? 

15 A That's accurate. 

	

16 	Q And when was that? 

17 A We were in Lake Placid, so that had to be July. I 

	

18 	call Marylou and she said the entry was In. I 

	

19 	talked to Betsee Parker and she said go to the 

	

20 	office and get that corrected. 

	

21 	Q So at no time prior to the show did you make any 

	

22 	inquiry to get your name off the entry form as 

	

23 	trainer? 
24 A No. I was at another horse show. 

	

25 	Q And who told the staff employee to put your name 
90 

1 	A We had just employed her. 
2 	Q She was with you all day Friday? 

3 A Yes. 
4 	Q Do you know whether we have an affidavit from her 

5 	that she went to show office? 

6 A No, I don't. 
7 	Q Does she still work for Betsee Parker? 

8 A Yes. 
MR. WILLIAMS: I have one more to 

follow-up. 	On entry the entry form for 

the show that's in question, the entry form 

was put ir, by the secretary of Scott Stewart. 

At that tin e, had they decided to move 
Betsee's I arses out? 

HE WITNESS: I guess. Like I said 

-- I was sort of informed they wanted them 
out by a certain date before she came back 

from Europe. 
MR. WILLIAMS: Because they put you 

down as the trainer. 	If a decision had 

not been made, would Scott's name gone down? 
THE WITNESS: I don't know. 

I IR. WILLIAMS: But they knew to put 

your name down? 
THE WITNESS: (Witness nods head 
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affirmatively.) 

	

2 	 MR. DANFORD: Any further 

	

3 	questions. 

	

4 	 MR. TOPPING: Let's go back to the 

	

5 	schooling area. The horse went up to school. 

	

6 	Who helped her in the schooling area? 
THE WITNESS: Her mother. 

	

8 	 MR. TOPPING: Did her mother tell 

	

9 	her what to do in the schooling area? Here, 

	

10 	here, jump here? 

	

11 	 THE WITNESS: Myself, my groom, 

	

12 	George, Brigid herself, and Andre Dignelli 

	

13 	came over to supervise. This is all crazy. 

	

14 	He was going to takeover as trainer, but not 

	

15 	that weekend. 

	

16 	 MS. CRONAN: Trainer or coach? 

	

17 	 A.4* THE WITNESS: We call it trainer. 

	

18 	He trains her. So he wanted to come over and 

	

19 	watch the hunters go and see how long it took 

	

20 	to prepare them to get in the ring. So in 

	

21 	the schooling Vt=ea, the mother is training 

	

22 	her and myself and George were setting jumps. 

	

23 	 MR, TOPPING: Okay. 

	

24 	 THE WITNESS: Again, leis a 

	

25 	gifted rider. You don't have to train her. 
93 

1 
	

I don't know if you have seen her ride. But 
2 
3 
	

MR. TOPPING: The other thing I 

4 
	

have to ask you is the night that people 
5 
	

watched the horse, were they in your employ 
6 
	

before or did you consider them trustworthy? 

7 
	

THE WITNESS: Absolutely. 
8 	

about a coach. If this person was at the 
MS. CRONAN: Can I go back and ask 

ring and was helping her and was expected to 10 
perhaps takeover her training, did that mean 11 
that she was also going to have the horse and 12 
have the care and custody of the horse and 13 
the training of the horse? 14 

THE WITNESS: Andre. 15 
MS. CRONAN: Andre. 16 
THE WITNESS: Again, eventually 17 

they would go to him, yes. 18 
MS. CRONAN: So eventually, but at 19 

the time they were not with him? 20 
THE WITNESS: No. 21 
MS. CRONAN: Okay. 22 
MR. MORONEY: Where did Nancy Hall 23 

came from. 24 
THE WITNESS: Nancy Hall came from 25 
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New Jersey. 
MR. MORONEY: And who did she work 

for? 
THE WITNESS: Herself. 
MR. MORONEY: And what's the 

purpose of paste again? 
THE WITNESS: The lactonase paste? 
MR. MORONEY: No. The other paste. 
THE WITNESS: Perfect Prep? 
MR. MORONEY: Yes. 
THE WITNESS: It's a natural herb. 
MR. MORONEY: Natural herb to do 

what? 
THE WITNESS: Relax them. 
MR. MORONEY: It's a calming agent? 
THE WITNESS: Yes. 
MS. CRONAN: Is it compounded by 

the vet? 
THE WITNESS: You can buy it 

over-the-counter. 
MR. MORONEY: It seemed like when 

Mr. Foreman was reading off of the card, the 
amount of times that the horse received all 
of this paste, that was a fair amount of 
paste. Is this a fairly frisky horse that 
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1 
	

requires that much? 

	

2 
	

THE WITNESS: Well, they all are 

	

3 
	

under the lights, bigger jumps. 

	

4 
	

MR. MORONEY: Did the same horse 

	

5 
	

get the same paste? 

	

6 
	

THE WITNESS: Yes. 
MR. MORONEY: So the regimen is the 

same every day? 8 
THE WITNESS: Yes. 9 
MR. MORONEY: So the day before, 10 

did he show under the lights? 11 
THE WITNESS: I don't know. 12 
MR. MORONEY: But he got the same 13 

regimen? 14 
THE WITNESS: Yes. 15 
MR. MORONEY: All right. Thank 16 

	

17 
	

you. 
MS. NELSON: I actually do have one 18 

question. 19 
RECROSS-EXAMINATION 20 

BY MS. NELSON: 21 
Q You testified that you were in the golf cart and 

	

22 	
you went ahead of Brigid and George and Sand 23 
the horse to the ring. And I want to make clear 24 
that -- that it was just you in the golf cart? 25 
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1 A Correct. 
2 Q So you had gone back to the barn to supervise the 

	

3 	horse getting tacked up? 
4 A For that, yes, I was there, yes. 
5 Q And where was Dr. Parker? 
6 A Doctor Parker was in the grandstand. 

	

7 	 MS. NELSON: No further questions. 

	

8 	 MR. MORONEY: Real quick. 

	

9 	Where this barn was located, so if I am 

	

10 	standing in the Rolex, standing, where is the 

	

11 	schooling area and where is the barn in 

	

12 	proximity? 

	

13 	 THE WITNESS: Diagonally. 

	

14 	 MR. MORONEY: Just across the 

	

15 	street? 

	

16 	 THE WITNESS: Well, the tent is 

	

17 	across the street, but from the schooling 

	

18 	area up top. 

	

19 	 MR. MORONEY: The one where you 

	

20 	walk to the top of the warm .up area. 

	

21 	 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

	

22 	 MR. MORONEY: Where is the barn in 

	

23 	relation to that schooling? 

	

24 	 THE WITNESS: Across tile street. 

	

25 	Just across the street, up on top of the 
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caused him to have GABA in his system and 

	

2 	nobody contests that. 

	

3 	 So, you know, all I can say is that 

	

4 	according to Dr. Parker and Mr. Rivetts, she 

	

5 	had the opportunity -- Ms. Colvin had the 

	

6 	opportunity. Ms. Colvin had a great deal of 
knowledge on how to administer medication to 

	

8 	the horse. In fact, she was able to identify 

	

9 	where and when GABA was given to the horse, 

	

10 	and coincidentally it was at the time that 

	

11 	the young girls that she identified were 

	

12 	working the horse to warm up. I don't know 

	

13 	if that's a coincidence. 

	

14 	 If you believe Mr. Rivetts and 

	

15 	Dr. Parker, she had the opportunity from the 

	

16 	time the horse left the barn to the time it 

	

17 	got to the warm up where she could have 

	

18 	administered GABA to the horse, despite her 

	

19 	protestations about giving injections. I 

	

20 	think there is a lot of evidence to contrary 

	

21 	that you heard not only from Mr. Rivetts, but 

	

22 	obviously second-handedly that provided 

	

23 	additional information. 

	

24 	 You can give it whatever weight you 

	

25 	want. That's obviously hearsay and Dan will 
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hill. 

	

2 	 MR. MORONEY: The one they use to 

	

3 	use for FEI? 

	

4 	 THE WITNESS: Yeah. 

	

5 	 MR. MORONEY: And there is a 

	

6 	schooling ring next to it? 

	

7 	 THE WITNESS: Yeah, that's right. 

	

8 	 MR. MORONEY: I want to make sure, 

	

9 	because when you were talking about the jump 

	

10 	barn, that's further down the road. 

	

11 	 THE WITNESS: Yeah. 

	

12 	 MR. MORONEY: Okay. 

	

13 	 MR. DANFORD: Anything further for 

	

14 	this witness? 

	

15 	 MR. FOREMAN: No. 

	

16 	 MR. TURNER: No. 

	

17 	 MS. NELSON: No. 

	

18 	 MR. DANFORD: Mr. Turner, do you 

	

19 	have any closing statements? 

	

20 	 MR. TURNER: :I don't know what else 

	

21 	to say. You have heard the testimony from 

	

22 	the witnesses, which are fairly diametrically 

	

23 	opposed. It's a credibility issue here about 

	

24 	who did what to who. And this horse 

	

25 	obviously got exposed to something that 
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probably admonish you about that at some 

	

2 	point down the road. But it's a simple case. 

	

3 	Mr. Rivetts had a certain amount of control 

	

4 	over the horse. Did he have control over the 

	

5 	horse thee. resulted in horse having an 

	

6 	illegal substance in his system? And was 

	

7 	there window of opportunity? And did a 

	

8 	person who had everything to gain by having 

	

9 	her daughter win this class take that one 

	

10 	extra step too many to insure that her 

	

11 	daughter was going to be successful on that 

	

12 	particular day, .given the opportunity. 

	

13 	That's is what this case boils down to. It's 

	

14 	a credibility issue. 

	

15 	 MR. DANFORD: Ms. Nelson. 

	

16 	 HS. NELSON: Well, it is a very 

	

17 	awkward position to be in when basically 

	

18 	co-respondents are pointing fingers to one 

	

19 	other, but that's where we are. And I will 

	

20 	agree with Mr. Turner on one thing, and that 

	

21 	is if you are to believe his client, 

	

22 	Dr. Parker, in Paragraph 9 of her affidavit, 

	

23 	she says: "On Friday, August 15th Steve 

	

24 	Rivetts, Faith Fort, Nancy Hall and I were 

	

25 	together all day. That's consistent 
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1 basically with what my client testified to, 
2 that they were all up in the tent watching 
3 the class. It's not consistent with what 
4 Mr. Rivets testified here to today. 

	

5 	 I also point out that Mr. Rivetts 
6 is a licensed official and he states that 
7 he's never heard of Carolina Gold and never 
8 heard of GABA. And I am sure the hearing 
9 committee can form its own opinion on the 

	

10 	credibility of that. What this really comes 
11 down to is ultimately not so much whether 

	

12 	Mrs. Colvin was the trainer, because I think 
13 the evidence here today has established very, 
14 very clearly that she did not bear any 
15 responsibility. What it comes down to is Mr. 
16 Rivetts' assertion that in the seven minutes 
17 that he left her alone with the horse, again, 
18 an assertion that's inconsistent with her 
19 statement, with her daughter's statement and 
20 with his employer's statement, that she gave 

	

21 	the horse a shot of GABA. 

	

22 	 Again, it's for this committee to 
23 decide based on common sense, whether if you 
24 are so worried about somebody messing with a 
25 horse that you are having them followed and 
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1 having a groom sleep with the horses to 
2 protect them, then you leave them alone with 
3 the horse for ten minutes. And again, their 
4 own employee who was George, who was supposed 
5 to be guarding the horse, made no report to 
6 them that the horse had gotten any substance. 

	

7 	Even if you believe their testimony that both 
8 Ms. Colvin, her daughter, rode the horse or 
9 took the horse from the tent to schooling 

	

10 	area. This Is also one of those unique 

	

11 	situations where I ask the committee, the 
12 panel, to consider based on their experience 
13 and knowledge of horse showing as it is 
14 today, and what we know is that riders, 

	

15 	particularly a rider of Ms. Colvin's caliber, 

	

16 	wait for their horse in the schooling area, 
17 where the groom brings it to them and they 
18 get. In any horse show in this country, she 
19 is not riding into the school area. She gets 
20 on in the schooling area. 

	

21 	 And if this case -- and if Brigid's 
22 liability comes down to whether or not she 
23 gave the horse the shot in seven minutes on 
24 the way up to the ring, I simply find -- I 
25 simply find that assertion incredible. 
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But there is no other evidence that shows she 
would l e responsible as the trainer. And the 
trainer under USEF's own rules is charged 
with protecting the horse and protecting the 
horse was something that Mr. Rivetts was 
charged with doing. 

So even if under his assertion Mrs. 
Colvin did something untoward, it was his 
responsibility to make sure that she didn't. 

MR. DANFORD: Thank you. 
Mr. Foreman. 

MR. FOREMAN: Well, we don't take 
sides. Our job is to try to help you all 
figure this out. And I would suggest to you 
that there Is a lot more to this story than 
meets the eye. We did the best we could. 
Here is what we do know. We do know that 
undoubtedly that Inclusive was administered 
GABA. If anything, this case does validate 
the work that we have been doing for the past 
three years to try to root out the use of 
substances that compromise our competitions. 
It validates it. 

As far as who is the trainer, there 
is no question that the GABA that is out 
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1 there is being used, is being used with Dr. 
2 Parker's horses. There are a lot of people 
3 involved here. 

	

4 
	

Brigid. Colvin was very informative. 
5 She is familiar with GABA. She knows about 
6 it. She says she has given It before. She 
7 knows how much is given. While I do not 
8 think that based upon the testimony she fits 
9 the definition of a trainer, I guess she's 

10 got opportunity and she's got motive if you 
11 are looking at this things from 30,000 feet 
12 given all that is going on with these people. 
13 But she would have had to administered GABA 
14 to this horse some time between the time this 
15 horse left the tent from the schooling ring 
16 to the Rolex ring. 

	

17 
	

It's that simple. I don't believe, 
18 based on the testimony, although it's a he 
19 said, she said that she had another 
20 opportunity, unless she was in the barn that 
21 morning and had access to the horse. 
22 With respect to Mr. Rivetts, because he works 
23 with Dr. Parker, he was the stable manager, 
24 he is the person that has the overall 
25 responsibility for the grooms and everything 
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that's going on there. I have to say he 
meets the definition. Now, does that mean 
that he gave GABA to the horse? No. Is it 
possible that people working for him gave 
GABA to the horse? Yes. If that's the case, 
then he is responsible for that. So I think 
the dilemma that you have is trying to figure 
out how the GABA got into the horse and who 
are the responsible parties. And it's even 
possible that it's people that may not be 
charged in this case that have culpability. 
So that's where we are. 

MR. DANFORD: Thank you very much. 
MR. TOPPING: Since this hearing is 

now concluded, it is important that I explain 
the process by which you will be notified of 
the decision in this matter. General Rule 
614.1 provides that notification o the 
decision could be 60 days or more following 
today, however, that is just an estimate, and 
the time might be longer, but hopefully it 
might be shorter. 

Rulings are never given out over 
the telephone. When the Hearing Committee 
meets, it hears several matters each day, 
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restriction. 
Thank you for your attendance 

today. 
(Thereupon, the hearing concluded) 
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sits for several days at a time, and 
consequently, the paperwork resulting from 
each meeting means that there may be a delay 
between the hearing date and the issuance of 
the rulings. 

The findings are sent to the 
parties and their counsel but not to 
witnesses who may appear. Witnesses who 
would like to see the findings would have to 
ask the permission of one of the parties 
involved. 

If there is a finding of no 
violation of the rules, that is the end of 
the matter. If there is finding that there 
has been a violation of the rules, then there 
will be a short notification to the 
membership on the Federation's website of the 
outcome and any penalty decided upon. The 
publication of the outcome on the 
Federation's website would not occur until 
after the parties have received their copy of 
the ruling. 

Until such time as you receive the 
findings In this case, you are free to 
participate in licensed competitions without 
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